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World Environment Day 2024
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Find Your Recycling Point

2023 BOCHK Corporate Low-Carbon Environmental
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49, 48,1 47,911 20,84 - 107 .42 104
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10
48,978 | 941,357 | 47,556 | 914,026 5.54 106 5.38 103
2023 12 31
11
49,290 | 947,354 | 47,868 | 920,023 5.58 107 5.42 104
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2024 49,321 | 947,950 - - 5.58 107 - -
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2024 48,283 | 927,999 - - 5.46 105 - -
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2024 48,977 | 941,338 - - 5.54 106 - -
2024 47,777 | 918,274 - - 5.41 104 - -
2024 48,284 | 928,018 - - 5.46 105 - -
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2024 2023
12,057 11,406
5,598 5,384
6,459 6,022
81 87
1,052 1,133
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HK
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3,021 673

634 115

3,287 557

231 77

- 231 9%
- 19

3,287 577

2,383 1,980

5,785 5,170

. 1,576 7,592
. 1,211 1,211
327 2,210

2,710 13,742

K 60,370 47,493

91 163
HK
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HK

2024 12 31

2024 2023

75,113 74,791
4,837 5,033
16 79,950 79,824
17 33,623 33,623
19 887 895
26 616 737
27 1,053 968
116,129 116,047
20 982 1,003
21 1,358 1,469
22 30 21
2,370 2,493

23 2,787 3,417

24 215 53

25 727 715

- 45 44
29 224 889
3,998 5,118

1,628 2,625
114,501 113,422

25 50,083 49,447

26 156 181
2,507 2,449

29 10,140 10,124
27 56 191
28 1,401 1,382
64,343 63,774

13 868 670
49,290 48,978

30

49,282 48,970
49,290 48,978
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2024 2023
1,443,672 1,437,483
92,967 96,734
16 1,536,639 1,534,217
17 646,234 646,234
19 17,048 17,202
26 11,840 14,165
27 20,239 18,605
2,231,999 2,230,423
20 18,874 19,278
21 26,101 28,234
22 577 404
45,551 102,386
23 53,566 65,675
24 4,132 1,019
25 13,973 13,742
- 865 846
29 4,305 17,087
76,842 98,368
31,290 50,453
2,200,709 2,179,971
25 962,595 950,371
26 2,998 3,479
48,185 47,070
29 194,891 194,583
27 1,076 3,671
28 26,927 26,562
1,236,672 1,225,736
13 16,683 12,877
947,354 941,357
30 154 154
947,200 941,203
947,354 941,357

2025 18

91 163
HK

134/336



EDINETOOOO
O00o0oOoooooooo00o0O00ooo0oboOo0noOo(E30309)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HK

2024 12 31
HK
30 30 30i 30 1

2023 47,472 788 357 1,422 49,333

- - - 3,156 - 3,156

- - 714 29 - 685

- - 714 3,185 - 2,471

14 - - - - 1,422 1,422

u - - - 1,408 - 1,408

u - - - 1,422 1,422 -
2023 12 31

2024 47,472 78 1,422 48,978

- - - 3,111 - 3,111

- - 141 171 - 30

- - 141 3,282 - 3,141

14 - - - - 1,422 1,422

14 - - - 1,408 - 1,408

" - - - 1,422 1,422 -

2024 12 31 47,472 62 450 1,422 49,290
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HK
30 30 e 30 ”

2023 154 912,412 15,145 6,862 27.331 948,180

- - - 60,658 . 60,658

. - 13,723 557 . 13,166

- - 13,723 61,216 - 47.493

. - 77 - - 77

14 . - . - 27.331 27.331

y - - . 27.062 . 27.062

" - _ . 27,331 27,331 -

gggi 12 31 154 912,412 1,499 38 27,331 941,357

- - - 50,793 - 50,793

- - 2,710 3,287 - 577

- - 2,710 63,080 - 47,789

- - 19 - - 19

14 - - - - 27,331 27,331

y - - - 27,062 - 27,062

" . . . 27,331 27,331 .

2024 12 31 154 912,412 1,192 8,649 27,331 947,354
91 163

HK
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HK
2024 12 31
2024 2023

22 9,049 9,460

1,307 1,264

39 44

1,406 169

6,375 8,071

3,769 3,972

231 307

18 115

26 13

3,991 4,381
22 697 2,500

22 - 3,477

22 300 300

22

22 325 311

22 267 243

2,830 2,830

2,377 4,040

350

23 325

12 31 22 15 23
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2024 2023

22 173,922 181,821
25,121 24,294

750 846

27,023 3,248

122,528 155,125

72,440 76,342

4,440 5,901

346 2,210

500 250

19 -

76,707 84,203
22 13,396 48,050
22 - 66,828
22 5,766 5,766
22 38 19
22 6,247 5,977
22 5,132 4,670
54,393 54,393

45,686 77,649

135 6,727

442 6,247

19 38

12 31 22 288 442

91 163
HK
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HK HK
2011 2013 23
HK 44
HK
HK HK
HK 2014
HK
HK
HK
HK
HK
2024 12 31 HK
2024 12 31 HK
HK
HK 2024 12 31
HK
HK HK
HK
HK
HK
HK
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35
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25
20
15
10
10
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2024 2023
12,018 11,321
12,012 11,314
45 92
12,057 11,406

2024 2023
39 44
42 43
81 87
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2024 2023
385 341
241 238
86 76
215 222
125 256
1,052 1,133
2024 2023
1,724 1,761
287 366
29 35
1,408 1,360
3.3 2023 3.3
10
2024 2023
3,073 2,904
195 196
5,648 6,867
13 10
758 734
125 256
334,000 2023 785,000

159/336




EDINETOOOO
O00o0oOoooooooo00o0O00ooo0oboOo0noOo(E30309)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

11
2024 2023
741 909
29
- 263
741 646
2024
16.5% 2023  16.5%
8.25 16.5 2023
2024 2023
4,080 3,616
673 597
87 82
15 28
741 646
2024 16.5%

2023 16.5%
8.25

16.5
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12
HK
HK
2024 2023
1
0.12 1.15 - - 1.27 1.52
0.09 5.72
- 5.02 10.83 9.03
0.07 3.67 - - 3.74 3.59
0.09 3,23 0.43 1.45 5.20 4.98
0.07 2.55 0.02 0.65 3.29 3.07
- - - - - 11.63
0.09 0.48 - - 0.57 0.66
HK
A H -
0.07 - - - 0.07 0.07
0.14 0.07 - - 0.21 0.22
07 - - - 0.07 07
07 - - - 0.07 07
0.07 - - - 0.07 0.07
’ 0.11 0.02 - - 0.13 0.14
0.14 - - - 0.14 0.14
0.09 0.03 - - 0.12 0.12
0.16 0.02 - - 0.18 0.19
0.07 0.05 - - 0.12 0.11
0.16 0.01 - - 0.17 0.17
- 0.04 - - 0.04 0.04
- - - - - 0.03
10
2024 1.68 17.04 0.45 7.12 26.29
2023 1.68 22.24 0.23 11.07 35.22
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HK

2023
2023
2023
10 2023
11
2023
2023
2024 2023
10.46 7.48
1.42 0.98
3.96 2.92
15.84 11.38
2023
2024 2023
0 - 500,000 -

1,500,001 - 2,000,000 -
3,000,001 - 3,500,000
3,500,001 - 4,000,000
4,000,001 - 4,500,000 -
5,500,001 - 6,000,000

162/336



EDINETOOOO
O00o0oOoooooooo00o0O00ooo0oboOo0noOo(E30309)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024 2023

67 73

71 76

2024 12 31 2023 12 31
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13
HEC HEC
r 1
HEC
HEC
HEC
2013 2009-2018
2018 12 31
2019
HEC 2019 1 1 2033 12 31
65
2024 2023
155 255
32 31
- 13
41 25
228 186
HEC 2024 40,499,000 2023 38,291,000
2024 12 31
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2023 872 13 27 912
13 13 - -
255 224
31 -
2023 - - 45 45
2023 _ _ 63 63
2023 12 31
2024 630 31 9 670
31 31 - -
155 32 - 187
2024 - - 25 25
2024 - - 14 14
2024 12 31 816 32 20 868
2023 300kWh 9.5
2023 38,881,000
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14
2024 2023

3,111 3,156
5,807 5,206
162 1,945

43 803

16 18

1,406 169

(1,303) 955

3,787 4,087

- 1,277

1,499 1,527

1,499 2,804

2,329 2,426

14. HK

501 404

2,830 2,830

1.1
HK
HK
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HK
141
2024 12 31
HK
2024 2023
HK
15.94 1,408 1,408
2023 15.94
HK
16.09 1,422 1,422
2023 16.09
2,830 2,830
2024 12 31 HK
16.09 2023 16.09 1,422 2023 1,422
HK
2024 12 31
16.09 2023 16.09 1,422 2023 1,422
2024 12 31 HK
8,836,200,000 2023 8,836,200,000
HK
2024 2023
HK
16.09 1,422 1,422
2023 16.09
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15 HK
HK
HK 3,111
2023 HK
8,836,200,000 2023 8,836, 200,000
16
2023 20,516 64,513 | 1,288 | 10,870 | 97,189 | 6,960 | 104,149
- 73 19 | 4,04 4,339 4,340
270 4,021 249 | 4,540 - - -
326 1,959 43 | 2,320 - 2.329
20382412 31 20,460 66,648 | 1,513 | 10,574 | 99,199 | 6,961 | 106,160
- 52 26 | 3,572 3,651 - 3,651
2,981 5,594 79 | 8,654 - - -
52 690 39 - 782 783
bo2a 12 31 23,389 71,604 | 1,579 | 5.492 | 102,068 | 6,960 | 109,028
2023 4,615 18,093 748 | 23,457 | 1,732 25,189
177 1,836 43 | 2,087 - 2,057
619 2,253 135 - 3,008 196 3,204
20382412 31 5,057 18,510 840 - | 24,208 | 1,928 26,336
49 553 39 - 642 - 642
630 2,409 148 - 3,189 195 3,384
bo2a 12 31 5,638 20,366 949 _ | 26,955 | 2,123 20,078
bo24 12 31 17,751 51,238 630 | 5,492 | 75,113 | 4,837 79,950
b023 12 31 15,403 48,138 673 | 10.574 | 74,791 | 5,033 79.824
287 2023
366
114 2023 103
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17
2024 2023
12 31 33,623 33,623

HEC CGU

CGU 16 2023

16
HEC
6.63% 2023 7.08
CGU 16
1.0 2023 1.0

2024 11 30

7.28 2023 7.17 CGU

2024 11 30

169/336



EDINETOOOO
O00o0oOoooooooo00o0O00ooo0oboOo0noOo(E30309)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

18
2024 12 31
HK
100
100
2,411,600,000 100
8,404
1,750
100
1,056
400
25
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19
LNG
10 30
HKLTL
HKLTL LNG HEC
CAPCO HKLTL
HEC CAPCO
HKLTL
HKLTL
2024 2023
- 11
189 114
189 125
5,020 4,973
88 86
142 112
198 223
428 421
2,868 2,896
1,913 1,781
4,781 4,677
785 527
267 123
257 124
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2024 2023
887 895
887 895
HEC HKLTL LNG HKLTL 699
HKLTL 2019
2022 2023 HEC HKLTL
978
20
2024 2023
673 692
309 311
982 1,003
155 2023 138
21
2024 2023
681 724
584 651
1,265 1,375
26
91 93
1,358 1,469
443 2023 489
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2024 2023

614 664

53 48

12 14 12

681 724

16
2024

663 11 652
15 20 17
12 - 12
695 14 681
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2023
691 13 678
17 21 17
29 - 29
741 17 724
HEC 31
2024 2023
17 14
12 31 14 17
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2024 2023
30 21
45 44
15 23
45 44
30 21
2024 2023
4,080 3,616
39 44
1,408 1,360
29 35
10 3,075 2,905
10 195 196
10 125 256
28 86 76
38 444
80 158
162 1,945
92 1,280
16 18
28 67 124
13 14 63
9,049 9,460

175/336



EDINETOOOO
O00o0oOoooooooo00o0O00ooo0oboOo0noOo(E30309)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

28
25 25
2024 1 1 23,017 27,145 2,449 703 141 52,052
697 - - - - - 697
- 300 - - - - 300
- - 325 - - - 325
- - 267 - - - 267
697 300 58 - - 453
- - - - 127 26 101
24 227 - - - - 251
2024 12 31 23,738 27,072 2,507 576 115 52,858
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28
25 -
2023 1 1 23,987 27,225 2,381 1,289 127 52,432
2,500 - - - - - 2,500
3,477 - - - - - 3,477
- 300 - - - - 300
- - 311 - - - 311
- - 243 - - - 243
977 300 68 - - 1,210
- - - - 586 14 600
220 - - - 227
2023 12 31 23,017 | 27,145 2,449 703 141 52,052
23
2024 2023
2,742 3,381
28
26
34 -
2,745 3,384
42 33
2,787 3,417
2024 2023
1,105 1,353
753 901
12 884 1,127
2,742 3,381
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2024 2023
33 63
26
17 36
12 31 42 33
24
HEC 2023
HEC 2023 2023
1.1
2024 2023
53 1,892
4,184 5,401
4,346 7,356
- 10
12 31 215 53
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25
2024 2023

23,738 23,017

427 415
23,311 22,602
8,365 8,661
863 834

9,228 9,495

300 300

8,928 9,195

13,597 13,581

4,247 4,069

17,844 17,650

50,083 49,447

2.4 2023 2.4
1.875 2.875 2023 1.875 2.875
1,056 2023 12 31 1,056
3.5 2023 3.5
2024 12 31 400 2023 12 31 400
4.375 2023 4.375 2022 10 12
18
31 2024
12 31 2023 12 31
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2024 2023

22,168 300

8,823 29,974

19,092 19,173

50,083 49,447

2024 2023

- 88 - 92
483 602 26
135 68 136 64
618 157 738 182
616 156 737 181
618 157 738 182
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19
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2024 2023
3,103 3,085
2,106 2,308
997 77
1,053 968
56 191
997 77
12
2024 2023
3,085 3,065
95 109
96 130
30 32
212 260
12 31 3,103 3,085
2025 49
2024 2023
2,308 2,341
36 38
73 85
- 11
- 76 93
- 21 -
212 260
12 31 2,106 2,308
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2024 2023
36 38
22 24
14 14
2024 2023
14 14
2024 2023
760 725
204 35
12 31 964 760
2024 2023
236 220
101 155
568 517
147 143
2,009 2,005
42 45
3,103 3,085
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12 31
2024 2023
3.9 3.5
3.5 2.9
5.0 5.0
2.5 2.5
2024 2023
- 0.25 31 36
- 0.25 32 37
- 0.25 31 36
- 0.25 30 35
- 47 50
- 47 50
2024 2023
- 0.25 10 12
- 0.25 10 12
- 0.25 10 12
2023
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2024 2023
10.1 10.8
4.7 5.1
2024 2023
81 77
2,446,000 2023 2,046,000
28
2024 2023
1,400 1,381
1,401 1,382
2024
1,381
86
67
12 31 1,400

HK
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2024 2023
2024 2023

741 909
517 -
224 909

- 20
224 889

2024 2023
10,140 10,124
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2023 10,037 312 70 76 10,495
52 321 263
- - 115 109
2023 12 31 10,089 79 35 10,124
2024
25 27 -
- - 33 17 16
2024 12 31 10,114 36 115 53 10,140
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
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30
HK
HK
30
30 30 30 14
2023 47,472 365 3,864 1,422 53,131
2023
- - - 3,705 - 3,705
- - 135 - - 135
- - 135 3,705 - 3,570
14 - - - - 1,422 1,422
14 - - - 1,408 - 1,408
14 - - - 1,422 1,422 -
2023 12 31
2024 47,472 230 4,739 1,422 53,871
2024
- - - 1,109 - 1,109
- - 53 - - 53
- - 53 1,109 - 1,056
14 - - - - 1,422 1,422
“ _ - - 1,408 1,408
14 - - - 1,422 1,422 -
2024 12 31 47,472 177 3,018 1,422 52,097
HK
16.09 2023 16.09 1,422 2023 1,422

HK
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HK
2024
0.0005
12 31 20,000,000,000 10,000,000
0.0005
12 31 20,000,000,000 10,000,000
0.0005
12 31 8,836,200,000 4,418,100
0.0005
12 31 8,836,200,000 4,418,100
2023
0.0005
12 31 20,000,000,000 10,000,000
0.0005
12 31 20,000,000,000 10,000,000
0.0005
12 31 8,836,200,000 4,418,100
0.0005
12 31 8,836,200,000 4,418,100

34 HK
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2023 757 609 1,366
125 18 107
269 _ 269
43 40
351 15 336
e 1z 406 627 1,033
189 77 112
301 - 301
10 12 22
102 65 167
2024 12 31 304 567 871
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2023 42 536 578
h 33 428 395
- - 63 63

80 75

2023 12 31

2024 14 941 955

h 22 60 82
- - 63 63
h - 12 12

2024 12 31 937 933

HK HK
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2024 2023
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
2024 2023
50,810 50,162
- 45 44
30 21
50,825 50,185
49,290 48,978
50,825 50,185
100,115 99,163
51 51
31
HEC
2024 12 31 440
2023 12 31 451 21
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30
1SDA
2024 2023

31 483 89 394 602 118 484
31 135 68 67 136 64 72
618 157 461 738 182 556
88 88 - 92 92 -

31
31 - 26 26 -
31 68 68 - 64 64 -
157 157 - 182 182 -

2024 12 31
4,850 2023 12 31 6,535

193/336
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2024
12 31
2,555 23,384 10,247 27,936 64,122 51,019
45 - - - 45 45
2,460 - - - 2,460 2,460
5,060 23,384 10,247 27,936 66,627 53,524
322 266 113 45 746 491
81
201 116 95 24 436
198 113 88 29 428
67
3,638 - 7,923 10,340 21,901
3,660 - 8,175 10,893 22,728
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2023
12 31
2,680 2,251 32,364 28,578 65,873 50,390
44 - - - 44 44
3,056 - - - 3,056 3,056
5,780 2,251 32,364 28,578 68,973 53,490
394 395 439 80 1,308 593
86
202 201 180 55 638
197 197 172 59 625
72
1,553 - 3,379 13,372 18,304
1,551 - 3,510 14,013 19,074
144 - - - 144
144 - - - 144
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2024 2023
37,206 37,265
30 21
13,604 12,897
- 45 44
2,507 2,449
16,126 15,369
2024 12 31
125 2023 12 31 116
188 2023 12 31 268

2023
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2024
67 1,236
2,295 -
2,362 1,236
1,345 93
950 -
67 1,143
2023
96 1,407
2,272 -
2,368 1,406
1,340 131
950 -
78 1,275
10
2024 2023

10

2023
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31
2024
/
026 -2035 |, ;o 27,668 483 - 89 - 189 189 -
2025 -2034 11,339 40 41 31 31 =
2027 -2034 10,546 93 _ 26 - 46 46 -
2023
/
2026 -2035 2.09 27.668 602 - 118 - 125 125 -
2024 -2032 8,493 34 40 -
2027 -2032 9,811 101 _ 23 - 13 13 -
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2024
/
2025 - - - - - - -
2024
2023
/
2024 144 - - - - - - -
2023
145 -
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2024 2023
USD HKD 7.4954 7.4867
JPY HKD 0.0510 0.0543
EUR HKD - 8.5846
JPY USD 152.8640 118.1725
13
2024 2023
- 31 483 602
- 31 135 136
618 738
- 31 88 92
- 31 26
- 31 68 64
157 182

201/336



EDINETOOOO
O00o0oOoooooooo00o0O00ooo0oboOo0noOo(E30309)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024 12 31 2023 12 31
32
12 31
2024 2023
7,437 5,832
17,967 21,073
2024 12 31 19
2023 31
2024 12 31 531
2023 700
33
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
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PAH

2024 12 31

19

HKLTL

36

HEC

2023

HEC

2023

34

PAH

46

PAH

CAPCO
184

HKLTL

14A

HKLTL

HKLTL

2024

12

2023
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45
PAH
2023
2024 12 31
HKLTL 38 2023
HKLTL 222
88 2023 35
HEC HKLTL
HKLTL HEC

14A
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35 HK
2024 2023
60,637 62,349
177 241
60,814 62,590
49 63
50 64
7 92
27 28
60,787 62,562
8,690 8,681
- 10
8,690 8,691
52,097 53,871
30
52,089 53,863
52,097 53,871
2025 18
36
2024 12 31 PAH
33.37 21.00 19.90
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38 2024 12 31
2024
12 31

21 2025
2026

11 2026

18 2027
19 2027
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Financial Statemeants

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
of the Trust and of the Company

Forthe year anded 31 Decermber 2004
Expeessed in Hong Kong dollar)

2024 2023
Mala Smillion 5 millian
Revenue 5 12,057 11,406
[HresT eodrs |5,5948] 15.384)
5,459 6022

Urher revenue and ather net intome 7 an ar
O bt opseraling costs ] 11:052) [ HEEN]
Operating profit 5488 4,976
Firiaroe cows G4 {1.408) {0 3E0
Profit before taxation (e] 4,080 36l
Imcome tny: 11 )

Curmert 741] [Rih]

Diesfisrreat - it

[ra1] (545)

Profit after tanation 33359 2570
Schatme of Contrd trardem 13} [228] IB&
Profit for the year attributable to the holders of

Share Stapled Uniti/shares of the Company 31 1156
Earnings per Share Stapled Unit/share of the Company
Basic and cbuted |5 3527 cents

3571 cents

Thee nates on pages 91 1o 163 form part of these conselidated (nanclal staternenty

Ax ewplalred i nate 2 the eonsalicatad financial atemanss af the Trus and the cordaldated Arancial satements of the Comapany ae
pesened togethes

Dietalis of distributony'divoends 'Jﬂ'pé't&'.' 1o hiakdars of Share SIEFE‘J Unitwshares of the Cosmpar i attributabls 10 the prodit for the vear
APE S8l QuT i nole 14,

B
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
of the Trust and of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2024
[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2024 2073
% million 5 millign
Profit for the year attributable to the holders of
Share Stapled Units/shares of the Company 31 1156
Other comprehensive income for the year, after tax and
reclassification adjustments
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Drefined benet retirement sohames
Remaeaurerment of net deflined benefit asset/Sabling 204 a5
Met deferred 1ax charged to ather comprehensie income [33] 1]
m o)
Cash fow hedges
Effective portion of changes in fai vabae of hedging instrusments
recogritted dunng the yeas (1) 4]
Cot of hedging - changs in fair value 12 5
- !
17 30
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Cash flow hedges
Effective portion of changes n fai vabie of hedging instrasments
recognitsed durng the year 124 [1a3)
Reclasstfication adjustrents for amoants transferred fo profit or loss [301) (265
Cown af hediging - changes in fair value &z [355]
Cist of hadiging - reclassilied 1o profit or lest [63] (&3]
Mat deferned tax cradited 1o ather comprehensive income 17 115
41} [715)
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to
the holders of Share Stapled Units/shares of the Company 394 24T

The maces o pages 91 1o 163 Forrm paat of these condobdabed financial waresnenry

As gaplalned Innote 2, the consaldared linandisl starsmeams of the Trust and the cansolidsted firancial satements of the Corripany ahe
e et

87 Arrwol fiepoat 0
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
of the Trust and of the Company

At 31 Decembar 2024
[Expeessed in Hong Kong dollar)

HNon-current assets
Propety, plant and equigenent
Irteresns in leasehoid land hedd fod owm use

Goochyil

IrtEpest Im 3 joing ventuine

Derhvarive financlal insoorme Ty

Erripioyes: nethemiant benedil schisme aisets

Current assets
Irveriones

Trade and ather iacahiabies
Bank, deposits and cash

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables and contiact abiigies

Fusl Clauss Feoonasny Aocount

Current portion of bank koans and other imerest-beanng bomowings
Bank pverdrafts - undecuned

Curient tax payable

Met current liabilities

Tatal assets less current liabilities
Mon-current liabilities

Bank loans and other interest-bearing bomowings
Dierivative linanclal isstumsnits

Customes’ deqosiss

Defared rax liahiles

Ermipioyes retiiement benelil schems Nabdhities
Cxhar ran-curent liabiiies

Scheme of Contral Fund and Reserve
Mat assets

Capital and reservaes
Share capital
Bt

Total equity

Mote

16
17
12
M
£71a)

21

B

F.

2alh)
27(3)
B

13[c)

b}

% million

75,113

4,837
79,950
13,623

616
1,053

116,129

12,787)
1215]

145]

13,998)
{1,628]
114,501

11586)
12,507)
{10,140)

1.401]
164,343]

864
49,290
8
49,282
49,290

2023
& millin

4.8
3033
ToEM
31623
EQS
TAT
)
16047

1,003
1459
21

2491

[EE ]
£53)
{Fl5)
(44)
(E3H
15,118
1Z625)
113422

AT
{E81)
{2449
CRERRr ]
{191)
11330
[ e
Lr]
4B 078

AB07D
46 97R

Appeoved and autharsed for lssue by the Boards on 18 Manch 20025,

Cheng Cho Ying, Francks Chan Led Shun
Derechorn [Krector

The nates an paoes 31 10 163 form parm of these conaalidated financlal statemants
As explalned b nare 2 the consolicses financial satements of the Trust and the corselideted financlal aaements of the Company ate

preseniad 1ogethe

BE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
of the Trust and of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2024
[Expressad in Hong Kong dollars)

Attributable to holders o
Share Stapled Units/shares of the Company
Propased!
declaned
5‘..'- Chini u J.| g o s M
capital premium reserve reserve dividend Toeal
§ milon cte 3MGHE o AN doole 30D (note BN (e 18
Balange & 1 lanuary 2033 -] 4TAT2 TRE ES3y] 1422 49 113
Changes 7 ooy fad 2071
Frofie ol he pia - - - EA L] - 1136
Criey compeehendles income - - (TLE ] - L]
Teral ¢ ompeebesreien income - H ] 1185 L 24N
Ay tranifemed o the iniied camyang amount of
Paehged) BB, Nt of i - - ] - - ]
Fanial dhnbmts st Pesrond il daiclend in ssspect of
piewicour el appriciant andd pavd (see pote 1871 - - - AR 40
Irzesim creriouton T invetim divicend paid (e nooe TR - - - 408 - (108
Proposed fingl datrbutionAecond westm dhadend
e mcte 1 = . X (1415 1452
Balance st 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2024 B 4TATL T m 1412 &B9T
Changes nequiny o 2004:
Sroofit ior he o - - - 3m - am
Ot comnprefienaive iRCome - - [141] im - 30
Teral  oimpsetestrifee Inoome - - [141] 38z - 34
At randfemed o the indibl camying ameust of
P R, et of - - 1 = - 1
Pl tfabibberysecnnd rilesm didend i sspen o
e e approved and padd e note 1ECT - - - - 14221 (14a3]
Irgevim clsrioution i nserim dheicend pad (e note Tadi = = = {1.408] = (1408
Prpersed final dstmibutionsecond inssrim dividend
(s e 10 - - - (1422 1402 -
Balange at 31 December 2024 ] ATATL (&1 450 140 1

The mates on pages 91 10 163 faerm part of these consobdated financial sacemens
As explained Innate 2, the consaldated linancizl starsmeams of the Tros and the consolidsrsd financisl ananements of the Company ane
presanbed tggether,

a9 Al fepat N4
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Financial Statemeants

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
of the Trust and of the Company

For the waar ended 17 Dacernber 2024
Expeessed in Hong Kong dollar)

2024 2023
Mala Smillion 5 millian
Operating activities
Canly gorsraned froem opetions 3B} 9,049 QA0
Titeinead pald 11.307] {1268
IR recened et LT
Hong Kong Profis Tas pai 11,408) [L]
Met cash generated from operating activities 6,375 B71
Investing activities
Payment Tar tha puechaie of popety, plant and equipment
and capital srock 13, 769] 2972
Caperalised mteres pad [231] 307
Meaw kan 10 4 joing veniune 18] {115}
Lo repald froem & jeing wenrune 26 11
Procesds fram dispaad af property, plant ard equipmeant 1 -
Mat cash used in Investing activities 13,901 {4381)
Financing activities
Proceads from Bank loang M) 697 2500
Repayment of ban loans 2z - {3470
Bedemption of medurn 1emm nodes Tie) {300 (300
Payment of lease labilitkes .rila] 12 in
Mew customsrs” deposis Xle) 315 in
Repayment of customens’ depnsis 2c) [267] 1243)
Dhstrlaitionadrvidends paid |2,830) {2300
Met cash used in finanting activities 12,377] {4,000
Met increase/|decrease) In cash and cash equivalents 7 3500
Casly anl cashy suidabims at 1 Jarmany {23] 35
Effect of foresgn exchanoe rate changes 1 i
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2203 5 23

The nates on prges 31 10 163 foem parm of thase conwlidated fnancial sratemants
As explained innate 2 the consolicses financial satments af the Trust and the corselideted financlal aataments of the Company ae
preseniad 1ogethe

90
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Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

{Expnessed i Hong Korg dollars uniess otherwise indacated)

1. General Information

H Electric Investmaents Limited (the “Tompany®) was incomonated i the Cayman slards on 23 Seplember 2013 a5 an eempted
company with limited bty under the Companiées Livw 2011 (a5 consolidated and revised) of the Cayman klands. The Company
has ettabliihed a principal place of busness in Hong Kong at Hongkong Bectric Cendre, 44 Kennedy Foad, Hong Fong, The prncios)
activity of the Company i ivestment holding,

On 1 anuary 2004, HE Blectric investments {the “Trust") was constituted ans a tiust by @ Hong Kong law govemsd Teust Deed entered
Into betwaren HE Bectic Imestments Manager Limited (the Trustee-Manages”, In ity capacity as this trustee-manager of the Trusth
and the Company. The scope of activity of the Trust as provided in the Trust Deed is imited to investing in the Company,

Thie Shaee Stiapdod Unity structune comprises {1) 3 wunit in the Trust; (21 beneficlal inferest ina specifically identified ondinary share
In thee Company which i linked o the untand beld by Trustee-Manager as legal cwner in ity capacity as trustee-manager of the
Truatyand (3 a specilically identified prelenence share in Lhe Compary which is “stapled® to the unit. The Share Stapled Unily are
Jainthy Issaed by the Trust and the Com pany and |sted on the Main Board of The S1ack Exchange of Hong Kong Limied ithe “Sock
Excharge®)

2. Basis of presentation

Pursuant 1o the Taast Deed, the Trust and the Company ae each required 1o prepane ther own ws of financlal starerments on

a corsoldaed basls, The consolidated finarcial stavements of the Trust fior the year ended 31 December 2024 complis the
consoldated financid saements of the Trug, the Compary and B sutridivies (ogother the Trust Group”) and the Tiug Group's
Imeresse im & poimt venture. The conalidated financial seatements of the Compary for the year ended 11 December 2004 comprise
rhe cansalidaed financial vatements of the Company and Its aublidlases {regerher the SGioup®) and the Group's INtensan in a joinn
VETILIE,

This Teust eanmrals tha Company and the sale acthity of the Trud during the year eaded 31 December 2024 was Bwvesting in

the Comparty. Therefore, the consalidared rewlts and financial porsition that woukd Be presented (n e conscldated Financial
staterrents of the Trust ane dentical to the comoldated meaulis and financial position of the Company with the only dferences
being disclosues of shase capital of the Corngany. The Directoes of the Trustee-Manasger ard Directors of the Company befleve that
It b5 clearer 1o present the consolidated financial staterments of the Trust 2nd of the Company togethee. The consodazed financial
smaterrents af the Trat and the consalidared Ninancial statemants of the Comparny are presentad together 1o the extant they are
identical and ase hesesafior refered as the “conscldated fimancial ssasements of the Trust and of the Comparnmy”.

The consalidated satement of prafit or boss, consalidared statermant of comprehensive income, corsalidated statement of financial
posithon, consolidated statement of changes in equilty, consolidated cash flow statement, materal acoouniing poficles and the
related explanatony Informatlon are cormmon to the Trust and the Company. Information specific to the Company ane disclosed
sepaatedy in the relevant explanatory information kn notes to the conselidaced fnanclal satements

Thi= Teurst Group and the Group ae refermad as the "Groupn”.

91 Aremod fepme 24 B
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)

3.

Material accounting policies

L]

Statement of compliance

Theia linancial statements have been prepared tn accardance wirth ol applicable Hang Kang Francial Reponing Standads
({"HEFRSE, which is & colective Lemmn that incluces 28 spplicable individud! Horeg Kong Fnancisl Reporting Standads, Hong
Kaong Accounting Standards CHEASET and Intepretations isued By the Hong Kong inititute of Cerifled Puldic Accourtants
{*HKCPA"), accounting principles gersraly accepted In Hong Kang ard the declaass iquirments of the Hoag Kang
Companies Ordinance. These financial satements also compiy with the applicable discloire previsions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securitkes on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, Maieral accourting policies sdopted by
the Groups ate diclzded below,

The HEICPA b ssued & nambser of amendments ta HEFRSs that are [t effeciboe of available for ealy adoption for the
curren] sccourting period of the Groups. Note & crovides mfoemation on any changes in sccounting palicies resulting
frarn initlal application of thess developments 1o the extend that they are relevant (o the Groups Tor the cutrent and prior
acendnting petods refectad in these fnanclal smterments.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measunemant basis used (n the prepeation of the fimarcial sEements i the histarcal cost basts sacept as explalned In
the accounting polickes et ot below.

The preparation of financial stabements in conformity with HKFRSs requines management to make judgements, estimates
and ansumptions that afect the application of policles and repoted amouns of assets, Rabilltes, iIncome and expenses. The
estimates and assoclated asumptions 2ie based on hivtorcal espedience and valows other facton that ane bellevec o be
reasonabis under the ciroumstances. the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carying values of
assets and Babiditles that are not readily apparent fraen cthes sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underying assuniptions e ievdedwed on an cngoing besk. Revisions o accounting estimates ae
recognised in the pevicd m which the estmate Is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the petiod of the revision
and future periods i the novishon affacts both cumant and future periods

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financlal statements ang
miajor sources of estimation wncaalrty are dacussed in note 37,
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Subsidiaries

Subsidianes are entites contolled by the Groups. The Groups control an ity when the Groags ane exposed, of have the
fighits, tovasdabile recums fom their irvolbaement with the- antity and have the abifisy to affact thoses refurns thiough thele
powver ower the entity. When assessing whether the Groups have power, ondy substantive tighis (hekd by the Groups or other
parties) ane corsidered,

Fpestments in subsidiaries are consolidated into the consolidated fimandclal statements from the date that control commences
unil thes date that conbol cesses Intra-group balances, transactons and cash flows and any ureealised profits anising from
mira-geoup tansactions are eiminated in full in prepating the consolidated financial Matements. Unrealised kosses resulting
Trom intra-group tansactions are edminated in the same way a8 unrealised gains but only to the extant that thene 15 no
evidence of Impaimment.

Ohanges in the Groups' Interests n a wbsidiany that do not result in a loss of contrel ase accounted foras equity transactions,
wherely adjustments ae made fo the amounts of controting and non-controlling interests within consolicated cquity fo
redlect the change In relathe intenests, but no adustments are made to gooowill and no galn or loss | reoognied

When the Groups lose control of a subsdkary, & 15 accounted for as a disposa of the enire Intenest in that subsiciady, with

a resilting galn of koss boing recognised in profit of loss. Amy Interest ietalned in fhat farmes subsidiang at the date when
control iy 041 s recaqnised at Fair vabie and this amaunt §s regarded as the faldvalue on initlal recognition of a financlal ssset
o, when appropeiate, the cont on Inial recagnition ol an investrment i ajolnt veniuee or an assaciate.

n the Company's stalement of financial position, investments i subskdsies ane stated at cost fess impalment losses {see
nate 3L

Jalnt venture

A jemns venturne s an armangement inwhich the Groups o the Company haree joint control, wheeeby the Groups o the
Coanparny fuve Lhe nights to the ret assets of the arsngement, rather than rights 1o 13 assets and obligations for il labilnes,

AR nderet in i jodnT vertuee i acoaunted for wsing the eqguity method, unless it b classilied as hedd fior sale [orincluded ina
disposal group that [s clatsified a5 hald far salel. vl initally recarded at cost, which Inchsdas transaction cosr. Subsequently,
1he conolidated financial statemenis incude the Growss share of the pralit of loss and other comprehensive income of that
evvesbee, until the date on which fent comrol ceases

‘When the Groups’ share of losses exceeds thefr ntema o the joint venture, the Geoupt’ interes is reduced 1o nil znd
secoanition of further lases iy discontinued sxcept 1o the sxtent that the Groups have incuemed legal or constuaive
obkgaticns o made payments on behall of the mwvesiee. Forthis purpose, the Geoups’ interest & the cammying amoun: of the
mvestrent under the aquy methad, togethes wah any other long-termn mterests that in substance fom pa of the Groups’
MRSt Ve SLMENT iM the ot verture, 3Rar apphdng the supacied credit loss CECLT model 1o such other keag-term Imereses
where apglicable [see note 3hi1

Unrealised gains atsng from transactions with equity-accounied imaesrap are eliminated against the imeestment bo the extent
of the Geoup” incerest in the investes. Uriealised kasses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only 1o the
extenl e i o evidencs of iImpaiment.

g3 Aremod fepme 24 B
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)

3. Matarial accounting policies [continuad)
(el Goodwill
Gondwdll iepietents the eaceid ot
(I} the aggregate of the fal value of the contideration transherred; over
i the ret fair value of the scquinee’s identifiable aisets and labilives measured as at the acquisition date
Wihen 1) is geeater thar ), then tis exccess & recognased Immediately in peolic of loss &5 3 gain on & Bagain purchass,

Goodwill aring on scguRiion of Businedyes & messured a1 codl e accurmubated mpaiment kises and & tested snnualy
Pt irmmpamrnen (see pote 3L

ifl Property, plant and equipment, interests in leasehold land and depreciation and amortisation

{il  Pmopery, plant and equipment including naght-of-use assats arsing from baases over leasehold properties wheie the
Groups are not registered owner of the propeny interest, other than asseqs under construction, are stated a1 cost less
accurmlated depeaciation {see note 301 and any accumadated impalrment losses [3ae note 3

(il Assets under construction are stated at cost kess empalrment kosses {see pote MM, 2nd are not depreclated Assets
under constructon am transfered to appropriste class of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
fioe 15,

(i) The cost of self-cormtructead bems of propeny, plant and equipment incladss the cost of maternais, dinect labour, the
Infka estimate, whese ielevant, of the costs of demanting and remaving the fems and restoring the ste on which they
are lncated and dn appropriate propoion of production overheads and Barmwing costs (e mote i)

(W) Subsequent expendiure to replace a component of an fem of propenty, plant 2nd equipmens that is accounted foe
separately. or 1o impeove ity operational pediarmandce i§ incudad In the ihem's carmgding amaurt o recognised as a
separate Rem i appropriste when It is probable that futune economic berefis in excess of the crginaly avsessed
standard of performance of the exiting asset will Bow to the Groups and the cost of the tem can be measured relfiably,
All other subtequent expanditune i recognised as an expende in the period inwhich it i inourred.

v} Galns o losses arking from the retiement or digposal of an fem of progperty, plant and equipment are determined as
tha dilference between the net disposal proceeds and the casnying armount of the lem and are recognized inprofi ar
% g the dabe of retinement o deposal

EEE it It gd
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i) Leasehold land held for own ute 5 stated a2 coit less accumulated amortiation (see note 0vill) and mmpairment
Il noge 3L

fwilh  The coat of scguiring Rterests inkeaschold land is amorised on a straght-ine basis ovey the shomerof the estimated
ugedul fves of the leased assets and the unespired lsase tam,

fwiil]  Depeeciation © caloulsred 1o wiite off the oo of nems of property, plant and eguipment bess thes estimated resdual
ik, If aevy, ing the steaightline methad sver their estimated useful Ivas, ard b geneilly reoognied in peolic af ks

The estimated wseful lives for the curent and comparatve period ae as ollows

Ve

Cabile unnels 100
Buddings &0
Ash Lagoon and gas pipeling &0
Teansrmibzon and distribution equipmen, overead nes and cables &
Generating plant and machinery 5
Giins ruithines ara Gas nigbine combined cycle 30
Mechanical resters £}
Fhorovoliaic systems 5
Woind turbanes 20
Elsctionic maters, microwave and optical fibre equipment and

trunk radio systems 15
Furnifure and fechutes, sundry plant and equipment o
Comparens St 10
Maorce vehichies and marine craft Sto6
Waorkshop tools and oifice aquipment 5
Fiogerties lased for own use Shoster of the unexpoed team

of lease and the properics'

Irramicvablie assets are amortised on a stralght-line Dask over the uneapired lease terms of the land on which the
irmaricabhe assets aee situated if the uneplined lease terms of the land are shorber than the estimated el lves of the
Immovable assots

Whene parts of an fem of property, plant and equipment hiave dferent useful lves, the cost of the praperty, plant and
ecuiprent s allocated on o easonable bass betwaten the parts and each pan is depreciated separasely. Depreciation
ozt vk, sl ooy and ressdual values, i any, ane reviewed at cach repoiting date ard adjusied € appropriste.

a5 Aremod fepme 24 B
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)

3.

EEE EE

Material accounting policies [continued)

fg) Leased assets

A inception of a contract, the Groups atses whether the contract Is, of contalng, 8 lease. This lihe case if the contract
corveys the right 1o contial the use of sn identified asset for a period of tirne in exchange for conpideration. Control is
cemeyed where the customer has bath the rght 12 direct the wse of the identified asser and to cbtaln subsantially a9 of the
eemnamic banefits fram thar wie

AL thes kease commencement date, the Groups isognlie aight-ol-use ase and J lease lability, except fon shon-1em leases
that e o lease teen of 12 months o ks and leases of lovevalus assats, When the Groups eniter imo a kaaxse in respect of 3
lewyrvabue anust, the Groups decide whether to capitalise the fease on a kease-by-ease bank B no? cagitaliesd, the asociated
lease payrments ane recognised in profit or kess on a syematic basls oves the lease term.

Whene the lease 15 capltalmed, the leass labitery | initially recognived 01 the presemt value of the lease payments payable cver
the lexse tesm, discounted wing the infersar rate impliclt in thie laae of, If that rate cannat be resdily determined, uding a
fetEvanl incremental botrowing rate, AN initial recognitgn, The sease Kebdity s measured an amonised cost and interes
expense i calowiated using the eflfecive mzenest method

The rght-of-use asset ieoognised when o lease it capialised i intially measured ar oo, which comprses the initial amaunt
of the lease Rability adjusted for any lease payments made a1 or béafore the comenencement dats, plus any inilsl direct costs
incumed and & estimate of costs o dismantle and remove the undeslying assets o to restoe the undeslying asset or the site
anwhich IT I lecated, heos any lease incorthies recebeed, The tght-af-ute niset i wbiequently sated ot cost leos accumulated
depraciztann and impaliment iodses [oes noted N and (RIGT).

The lease liabibty i remeasured when there o a changs in future bease payments arising flom a change e an indsx o rate, oo
these 5 a change in the Groups” estienate of the amaunt axpected o b2 payable under a residual value guatantes, or f the
Grougr change thei assessment af whether the Groups will eseichie a purchase, extendgion ar femination option When the
f=ase Batulity is remeasured in this way, a conespanding adjustrment is made to the carrylng amount of the rigli-ol-use assst,
a¢ i reconded i peolit o loss ¥ the cairying ainound of the ight-ol-use asset has been reduced to 2ero.

The laase liabilry s akso rerneasured when there & a lease modificacion, which means a change in the scope of a lease or the
consdemtion for a lease that s not ongnally provided for in the lease comeacy, € such moddicatien s not accounted foe asa
separate lease. in this case the ease babiity is emeasured based on the revised lease paymenits and lease [erm wsing a revised
dcount rate at the offective date of the modification.

The puarent postion of long-tem lease labilties Is detemiined as the present value of contractual paymends that are due to
be settled wahin 12 months after the iepoeting penod,

MR o6
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{h) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i

Credit losses from financial instruments

The Grougs recognbe a loss allovwance for BCLS on the Hnancial adsets messuned at amoetised cost including cath and
canh equivalenis, trade and othel recebvables and loan (o a join venlume),

Measuremant of ECLs

ECLs ane a probatslity-weeighled estimate of cred losses. Credil koswes ane measured s he present vahee of all expecied
cash shortfalls botaren the contractual dnd expectad amoisnts

The expected cath shorfalls me discounted wilng the following mees o the effect (4 material

Tracde and asher recehables and fored rate financial ausers offectve inferest rate Setermined a8 intial recogninian
& an apprasderation thereol,

yarksbbe rate financial assots current effective intenest rate

The maximurm perod considensd vwhen estimating ECLS is the madeam contractual period over which the Groups ane
exporied to credit vk

ECLs am meatured on either of the following bases:

- ) 2+l ECLS: e are the portion of ECLS that result from default evenits thal are posiibie wichin the 12 months
afye the repaning date (or 4 shomer period if the expecied ife of the Insthurnent o leas than 12 monthsl and

- [etirme ECLy: these arne the ECL3 that result from all pessible default svents over The sxpected lives of the iems 1o
which the ECL model appie:

The Geougrs measun® ks allosances at an amount equal To et me BOLS, oxoept for the fallowing, wiich are measured
at 1 2-manth ECLs

Ninancial irstiuments thad are determined 1o hive low oreda risk st the reposting dase, and

- othes financial insensrments foewhich credin rak (e, the e of defaul occurming over the cxpected fe of the
linancial irstiument) has not increased significantly since initial recognaion

Loss alkwwances for trade receheables are ahways measured a1 an amount equal to Betime B0l

a7 Aremod fepme 24 B
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)

3. Matarial accounting policies [continuad)

(h} Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)
{i}  Credit losses from financial instruments |continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

Ir assmssineg whether the credit sk of & financlal imrument has increased significantly since inalal recogrition znd
whan measuing ECLs, the Groups consider reasonable and suppoitable mformation that is relevant and avalable
wahout undue cost o effore This includes both cuantitative and guatitative informatian and analysis, based on the
Growps” hestowical experience and Informed credit assessmens, that inchedes fonward-looking nfiormation

The Groups conseder a financial asse; to be indelfault when §] the debber is unlikely 1o pay its credit obSgations 1o the
Groups in full, without eoourse by the Groups 10 actions such as realising secusity {if any (s held: or (i the receivables.
are 90 days past due and the debitor does not respond to the Groups” collection activities a5 historical experience
Indicates that recehvables meet those criterla are generally not recoverable

ECLs are remaasuned at each repoeming date ta reflect changes in the financal instrument’s credn risk snce inimal
recognitian. Ay change In the ECL amasnt i riecognised as an impasment gaén or koas in pofit or [oss: The Geoups

recognise an Impalrment gain or loss for a8 fnanclal irstuments with 3 comesponding adjustment to thelr camying
amaunt throwgh a loss allowance account.

Credit-impalred financlal assets

A1 each reporing date, the Groups assess whether 4 inanclal asset & credit-impaeed. A financlal asset is credit-impased
when one or more events that have @ detrimental smpact on the estimated futwe cash flows of the financial asset hawe
oooumed.

Evidence that a fnanclal asset s credit-impaired includes the followng obsenable events

- significant fimanctal difficu®ies of the debtorn

- a breach of contract, swch as a default or besng more than 90 days past due:

= the estwicturing of a loan or achince by the Groups on teems that the Groups would not consides athensd e

1t b probable that the debloe will entef into Bamkreptcy or gihes inanclal reciganisation: or

- the deappearance of an acthve market fora secunty because of financlal dficultes of the ixsuer
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Write-off policy

The grogs catrying amoun: of & financial agset s waitten of/ 1o the extent that there is no realistic prodpact of moovery
This s generally The case when the Growps determine that The cebror does nat hawve assets or sources of income that
could ganarate sufficient cash flows 1o repay the amaunts subjeet to the wiits-ofl,

Subssguer recovenies of an gaset that was pridously wiltten off are recognized ga a reversal of impaismen in profit o
lerss i the peviod in whilch the recoveny aoevir

Impairmant of other non-current assets

A1 each reparting date, the Groups review the camying amounts of thelr non-financial assets (other than mvertories!
o determine whather thete & any indication of Frpaliment IF any sach indicathon exists, then the assets recoverable
armount 5 estrnated. Soocwil is tested annually for Fnpairment.

For impairment testing, asscis ane grouped together into the smallest group of assets that genorates cash inflows

from continudng wse that ane lamgely independert of the cash inflowes of other astets or cash-generating units POGL%L
Goodwill arsing Trom a Business combination bs alocated to OGUs or groups of CGUs thal e axpected to benafit rom
the synegies of the combinaton.

Tha ieconerabie amount of anadset of CGAU i the greater of itsvakue In use and its fai value less costs of disposal Vahee
In use s based on the estimated future cavh flowns, discounted to thelr present value using a pre-tax discount rabe that
reflacts cunment midket assessments of the tirme value of money and the risks specilic to the asset or CGLL

An impalment kods is ecogrised i the carmying amaunt of an asset or CEU enceeds it recoverable amount,

Iy e kosses ane recognised in profi or ks, Thary are allocated firt 1o reduce the canying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the CGL, and then to ieduce the camylng amounts of the ather assets In the CGU on & pro rata basls,

A imipalrmeent ks in nespect of goodiedl] s nod reversed, For olthet ssets, an impalrmien loss 5 reversed only 1o the
extent that the iciulling canying amaunt dod not excded the carmpng amourt that would e been determined, net
of depreciation or amartistion, if na impaimment ks had been recagniued.

Interim financlal reporting and impairment

Limctor the Hules Governilag the Liting of Secusitiss on The Stack Bxcharge of Hang Kong Limited, the Groups ane
requined o prepace an (ntedm financial tepo in complance with HIKAS 34, lrerim financiel reporming, in respect of the
first six rrsonithis of the fnancial yean, At the and of the intesirm peariod, the Groups apply the same impalimsert testing,
recognitan and reversal crivena as iwould 31 the end of the financial year (see notes 3l and 30K
Irrpaitmmenit kass reoognided Inan intedim period in respact of goodwil i not reversad in a subsequent perod. This is

the case ewen f no loss, of a smaler loss, would have been recogrised had the inpainment been assessed only at the
end of the financial year to which the intesim penod relstes.

(l Aremod fepme 24 B
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)

3.

Material accounting policies [continued)

o

Short-term employes benefits

Shor-term employee benefits ae expensed a4 the related sendee b provided, & llabiley is recognised for the ameount
expected o be paid f the Groups have a preent legal on constructive obligation to pay this amount as a el of past service
peoviced by the employes and the obiigation can be estimated raliably,

Retirement scheme abligations

]

(i)

Defined benefit retiremant scheme obligations

The Grougs’ net obligation in respect of defined benefie retirement wchemes b calculated sepasately fos each scheme
by estamating the amount of futuee beneli that employees hine satned in retun for their service in the curment and
price pericads] that benefi i discounted (o detarming thit pritent valie snd the B value of any Sohweme nets B
deducted. The discount rate 13 the yickd at the end of the reporting period on Hong Kong Speciad Adminstathe Heglon
Gowernemient Exchange Fund Mates that have maturity dates approcdmating the tenms of the Groups' obligations, The
calculation is perfoermed by a quabified acluary wing the "Projected Unit Credit Method®

Whare the caloulation miults in 3 Berafit to the Groups, the aset recognied 15 limited to the pretent value af
economic benefits available In the farm af any future rfunds from or reductions in future comtributions to the defined
benefit retivermaent s heme.

Remaasurements, compesing achesdal gairs and losses, the offect af the changes to the asset celing (If applicabie]
and the retusn an plan asets (eecluding Intenest), are reflected immediately in the consalidated seateme it of finaneial
position with a charge or creds recognaed Inothes comprehensive income in the penod in which They oo,
Remeawurement recognised in other compechembae Income |5 reflected trmmecliatiely in The fevenise mesenae and will
ot e e Laasfindd to et o o

Thie Growgs determine the net interest expents of incame fat the period on the net defined beneft lability or aset by
applying the decount rate wied to mease the defined benefit obligarion at the beginning of the annual pericd to
the rict defined benefit llabilny or asset, taking Into account ary changes in the net defined labilities o asert during
the year 03 & result of coneribution and benelit paymenty Net irtenit expende ind other sxpenies related 1o defined
benedll retirement schemes ane recognised in profit ar loss,

Contributions to defined contribution retirement schemes

Obligations for conpibutions e defined contribution ietiremant schemes, induding contributicns payable under the
Hong Komg Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, are recognised a5 an experse in profit of loss as the related
senvce b provided.
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Inventories
nventories are carhed at the kower of cost and net realisable value.
Coad, stores, fuel ofl and natural gat are valued atcost measured on a weighted average basks.

Coxt comprises all costs of purchase. costs of conversion and ather costs incurmed In beinging the inventaries to thelr present
cathon and condition. Cost of inventories ecognised @5 an expense inchudes the wrte-off and all losses of imventonies.

Mt reaizable value ts the estimated sellng price in the cedinary course of buseness kess the estmated costs necessary to make
the sale.

Trade and other receivables

# recehvablie B iscogniied when the Groups have an uncondional ight 1o recewe conskderation and only the passage of
1ime 14 requined belom payment of that comilderation |4 due,

Trace rege heabiles that do nod conten a significand lewncing compotent s initaly measured 3 their ansaction price. All

secohabiled st ubiegquently iared At amarthed cott, ining the effective Inteseat method snd including an allowasnce for
creeil ferives (see note Hh

Interest-bearing borrowings

e -bearing borocwdndgs are recognised Initaly 3 falr value less transaction costs: Subsequeent to inittal recogniion,
nerest-beaning borowings are stated at amostised cost using the effective inferest method, Intenest srpense s recognised in
scoordance with the Groups' acoounting peloy for botrowing costs (see note 3vil

A call option embeddad in a host debt insmement is closely related to and not sepamted from the has delbt instrement 1 the
option's exercise price |5 approdmanaly equal on each exerche date to the amostised cost of the host deiot Instrumeant.

Trade and other payables

Track and other payables s initlally recognived at falrvafue, and subeguently Mated @t amoitised cost unles the effect ol
desCounting okt be rmmadedal, i which case thisy are stated a8 iInvoioe amoums

{[i}] Arewod fiepmt 24 1l B
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)

3. Matarial accounting policies [continuad)

1]

a)

Contract liabilities

A eontract Kabdlicy W recognived when the cudtomer pays nan-fefundable consideation befons the Grougd isoognbe the
redated reverue [Lee note 30k A contract lsbilty is alio secognised if the Groups have an unconditional right to recelve
narrrefundable condderation befaee the Groups recognise 1he rekted reveres. In such cases, 3 correipending recatvabile 1s
Al iedagnbusd (iee nate 30

Derivative financial instruments

The Geroaps hobd deviatiee inancial instments to manage thelr fomesgn curmency and Intenest mte sk exposunes. Dervaties

are initally measaied at fal value. Subtequently, they are meaaured at fairvalue with changes therein recognitsed In profit or
hoss, except where the desivatives oualify for cash flow hedge accounting (see nate 3gh,

Hedging

Thae Groups designate ceftan dervalives s hedgng instnements to hedge the varabilty in cash Novwa asiooated with
highty prababile fenscait tansactions arising from chamges in fomeign exchangs rades and varaile it bomowings (cash Aow
hedpes). o 3 hedging nstruments o hedge changes m the favalue of a recognised asset or lisbility (irvalue hedges)

i}  Fairvalue hedges

Changes in the fair value of deshathes thar are designansd and aqualify as G valos hedges ae iecognibsed In prafit o
levas, alamg with any changes in the fair value of the hedged assets o labiites that ame anributabls 1o the hedged rsk

1032
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Cash flow hedges

\Whare a derivative b designated as a cash fiow hedgéng instrument. the effective postion of dhanges in the Birvalue
of the demative |5 recagnised in other comprebanshe iIncome and accumutased in the hedging reserve within equit.
The effective pomion that s recognbed in other comprehersive income ks Bmined 1o the cumulative change In tair
ahue of the hedged tem, detenmired on a present value basis, from Inception of the hedge. Ay insflective portion s
recagnised immediately in profie or bass.

Forward element of forward foreign cusrency contracts and forelgn ourency basis spread of financlal instruments may
be separated and excluded from the designated hedaging mstruments. Iif the Grougs exclueds the foreand elemeant

of a forward Eoeign exchange cantract or the foieign curency bas s speead of a firancial instrument [the “excludad
elamants’) from the daslgnation of a hedging irstiment, then the exchsded alemants may be sepatately accountad
fioe a5 @ cost of hedgng The far value changes of the excluded elements are reoognsed ina separace component of
mwwtmmlmtﬂrﬂaﬁﬁm!hﬂmlm

Wheen the nedged forecast tramsaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financlal asset such as
Imyentory, the amourt accurmulated n the hedaing resenve is removed friom the resanse and b ncluded directly in the
Initial oozt of the nor-financis item when it B recognsed.

Far all other hedged fosecast iransactions, the amount accumulated in the hedging reserve I§ reclassified thraugh othes
compeehevir inoeme to proft or loss.as & reclasilication adrstment in the same perod or pencds durng which the
hedged eopected futune cash fliows affect profie or foes [wech as when interest expense (s recognised],

IFa hedge no longer mesets the critena foe hedge accountng or the hedging instrameent & sold, explres s femminated
or i eiercived, hedge scounting is discontineed picipectiely. When hedge accounting is discontimied, the amount
that has been accurmulated m thie hidging nesene remaird in equty until the transaction occurs and it is recognised in
accorcance with the above palicy.

1 whve Py futuee cash flows ave 0o longer expected to ocour, thir armpant Chat has been accumulated in the
hedging resenve b immedistely reclassfied 1hreagh ather comprehensive income 10 profit or less.

103 Armiol fepot M2
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)

3.

Material accounting policies [continued)

Revenue recognition

{i}

Regulation of earnings under the Scheme of Control Agreement

The eamings of the Groups” majar subsidiary, HE Ekectric, are regulsted by the HISAR Government [the Gavemmant’)
under a Schema of Control Agreement ("5oCA7) which provides for a permittied ievel of eamings based pancipally ona
retuin on HE Electric's capia! imeemmient in alectiicity ganesation, tranimision and dismibution sssen [rhe Permired
Ratuwim]. The SoCA alo provides fod petlormance based Incentives and penaliies which encowage cusiome

senvice gualty, energy efficiency, demand response reduction and renewab'e enesgy development. The Net Betum

of HE Hectric under the SoCA s derermined By deducting froem the Semitted Reoum imensst and pecess capacity
adjustrments, if any, and adusing for the abowementiared Incenties and penalties. HE Elacizic |s required 1o submay
detalled Development Plans for appeoval by the Govermment which project the key determinants of the et Retum to
wiach HE Elactric vl be entitled over the Developmeant Plan period.

The Government has approved the 2024 - 2038 Development Plan covering the period friom 1 January 2024 1o

11 December 2028 No fusther Govemmeant apoeoval & requited during this period unless a need for sighifican: Basic
Taaiff ncreases, over and above those set out in the Development Plan, is identified cuning the Annual Tan® Revew
conduczed with the Goverrment under the resms of the SolA

Fuel Clause Recovery Account

Ureder the SoCA, amy differenoe between the sandard cost of fuel, a5 agreed with the Government, and the actual cott
aif huel eacisarred 14 transemed to the Fuel Cliue Revovesy Accoint (el Cont Actoun! Adjuitients”

Fued Clause Changes (or Febates) ae charged for given) 19 customess by adding 1o (or deducting froem| the Basic Taril
tes ptesduice a Mot Tarif payaible by ewstamers and ane credited (o debited) o the Fuel Clnse Recovery Accoun.

Thie balance on the Fuel Clsre Recovery Account af the end ol a imancial year represents the difference botween Fuel

Cladse Changes for Rebates) and Fuel Com Account Adjustments during the year, together with any balance Beoughe
farward from the prios yeas and interest thenson based on prevaling markes intenest rates,
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(i) Income recognition

Incomie i classified by the Groups as revenue when it anses from the sale of efecicity, the provision of services ar the
use by othees of the Groups” assets undar leases In the ondinary course af the Groups” business.

Fevenue is recognised when contbol over 3 product or serdice is transfemed 1o the customer st the amount of pramised
considemation o which the Geoups ame prpected to be entitled, mecheting those amounts collected on behall of thim
parties. Revenue is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further deiah of the Groupd” revernes and cther inzome recogrition podcies ane as folows:

(1} Electrichy income ks recogrised based on the actuat and acorued unis of slectrcity consumed by customers
during the year at the Sashc Tanff, which s the unit charge agread with the Government during the Annual Tarf
Rervienw for aach financal year.

{2} Eleciriciy-related income 4 recognised when the related sendces are rencered,

(31 Intenest income is recognised using the effective interest method The "effective nterest rate” b thi rate that
ety discoungs estimated hitune cash recelpts through the cxpected e of the fnancial asset to the gross
camying amaunt of the financial asset. incaleulating Intevest incomes, the etfectie intevest ate b applied to the
gross canying amount of the asset twhen the asset is not oeci-impaired). Boweyer, Tor financal assets that
have become credit-impasted wibsequent 1o initis) reeognition, inferest income s calculated by applying the
cifective inferest rabe to the amartised cost of the financial asset. if the asset s na lorger creditdmpalned, then
the caboudation of interest Income reyets fo the gross basks

Translation of forelgn currencies

Feggn cumency tramacticns during the year are ranslated into Hong Kang dolian & the foeeign exchange rates nuling ar the
Trarsction dates, of al contract rates If foreign cumencies are hedged by forward foreign exchangs contracts, Monetary assets
anel fiabilives denaminated in foreign cumancies ane irandlated ime Hong Kong dellars ot the Toreign eichange raes rulng at
the end of the ieporting penod. Exchange gaing and losses e generady dealt with in profiT or ke,

Hon-moratany assets and Baoilities that are measured in terms of histonical cost in a loreign currency aie ransiated using
1he forelgn exchange mée uling o the tramsaction dated. The trnsaction date is the date on which the Gooups inslally

recagnited such Ron-MomeTary s of abifimes: Non-manetany iters and Rabilitias denominared in fareign cusrencies that
ate stated ar fair wakee are transiated using the foresgn exchange rames ruling a2 the daces the B vaiue wirs measuted

105 Aremod fepme 24 B
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)

3.

Material accounting policies [continued)

L]

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and eah equivalents comprise cah at bank and in hand, dermand depoes with banks and ether financial insitutions
andd shoxetstesm, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amours of cash snd which are subject to
an inggnificant risk of changes in valae, having been within three monthe of maturity at acquisiten. Bank ovendrafs that as
repayable s demand Afd faim ah integral pan ol the Groupd” eash mardgement ae alio Inclded a1 3 companent ol crh
and cath squivaien for the punpase of the comolidated cash flow satement, Cath and cash equivalents ae anessed for
ECLs in accordance with the policy s&1 out in note i

Income tax

Income tax for the year comorises current tax and defesred tax | s recogrised in profit or loss excege to the extent that 1
felates to dems recognised inother comarehensiee income or directly in equly,

Current tam comgelses the estimated 13x payable or receivabls on the tixabie Income or loss for the year and any adistments
ti the tan payabie o recetvable in respect of previous years. The amount of cument tax payable of recehiable is the best
estimate of the tax amount expected 10 be pad or received that reflects any uncenainty related 1o Income Taes 1S
misasured Lsing tax mtes enacted of substantvely enacted at the reporting date.

Current tax avseqs and labilites are offset only f certain oiteria are met

Deederrad tax b recognised in respect of termpoeany differences between the carmying amounts.of assets and llabilies for
firancia reporting punposes and the amounts wed for tazation purposes. Defeired tax b not recognised for

- termiporary dflesences on the initial recognition of assets or labilites in a transaction that s not a business combination
anrl that affecis nefther accaurting nar taable peafit of kot and daes not ghee rise to equal taable and deductible
tempaorany differences;

- termiparary diffesences melated to investment in subsidiaries and joint venture to the extent that the Geoups are able
tocontral the iming of the revesial of the temponary diferences and it s probable that they will not ieserse in the
loreserable future;, ard

- taxable termpoeary dffcrences ariing on the inftial recogniton of gooddll

Deederied tan assets are recogrised for wnused tax [osses, unuied tad oredts and deductibie termporary diffenences to the
extent that i s probable that futuse taxeble profits wil be available agalrst which they Can be wseed. Future taable peofits are
detenmined based an the revensal of relevart taable temponary differonces. f the amount of taxable temparary differences

e insuficient to recognise a defemed tax asset in full, then futuee thxable profits, acusted for reversals of exitbng termpaany
diflerenc, se considednd, based on the business plans for indedchuaal subsidianes in the Groups, Defered tax asssts ane
tevsewed 31 each reporting date and are reduced bo Uhe extert That it = mo bonger prokalle that U relibed L benefit wil be
reaksed; such reductions ane neversed when the prebability of future taakle peofits iImgroves

Dbt e tand assets and Kabdities ate offuet only Il certain citeria ane metL

MR 106
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Borrowing costs

Bomowing costs that are directly attizutable to the acquesition, construction of production of an asset which necassanly
takes a wihstantlal period of time 1o get ready for its Imendad use or sale ase capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Crher
boanowing cos1s are expensed in the patiod In which they ate ncunes

The caphtalisation of bormowing cosss as part of the cost of a qualifiing asset commences when expendituse for the asset 1
b=ing Incurned, bonowing costs are Bedng Incumed and activitkes that are necessary to prepane the asset for its infended use
ior sabs aie in peogress. Capltalisation of bomowing costs b suspended or Ccrases when substantially all the aclivities necessary
1 prepare the qualifying asset for (s interded use or sale ae misrmupted o complese.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Prowea jons ane recegmised whien the Groups or the Company baee 3 legal or constructve obligation aiving as s rewll of a past
event, it is probabile that sn outfiow of econamic benefits will be mauired to st the obligation and a relabie edtimate can
be- made.

Geterally provislons arg determined by dhcouming Uhe expecnisd futare cosf fowes 3t a pre-La rate that rellects cuenen!
market sapiament of the Tme vakie of maney and the flaid specifie ta the llablny,

Where It it not peobable that an outflow ol economic benedits will be required, of the amount cannat be estimated rellabl.
1he philigation bs disgioned a1 3 contingent Rability, unkess 1he prabability of eutfiow of soonormie Benalits is emote Pouible

obbgatian, whose sostence will only be confarmed by the occumence or non-eccumence of one of mane fulure events, ae
#ha dacloted w contingent Rabilitkes unless the prababiliity of cusliow of econcmik benefas B remate,

107 Arewod fiepmt 24 1l B
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)

3. Matarial accounting policies [continuad)
(%] Related parties
il A peiiy, OF & clote mevnber of that pemnan's family, 19 relsted 1w the Groups if that person
(1 has contiol of jint control aver the Groups
(2} has sgnificant irflusnce over the Groups; or
(3} i amember of the key mansgemen: peronnel of the Graups.
(i Anentity s meated 1o the Groups B amy of the folkeyving conditions applie

[} The entity and the Groups ate mermibens of the weme group (which mesns that each pacent, subridury and Teflow
subskdiary i mated 1o the atharh

2} Oneentity b a ot venture of an dssocisie of the other entity o a joink venture or an ssockaie of a memnber of 2
group of which the othet entity is & member.

(3 Both entites are loint ventures of the same third pamy.
(&)  Omneentirg s a joint venrure of 8 tho entiy and the ather sntiey s an ameciate of the thisd entmy.

[5)  The engity s a post-employment benelit plan foe the benefit of emgployess of eithes the Croups or an emtity
related 1o the Croups

[B)  The entiry is controlied of jaimiy contolled by a pesson igertfied inrote 3

(7} A person identified in note 3000H1) has significant influence over the entity of s a member of the ey
management personnel of the entity (or of 3 parent of the entity],

B The entity, o any memdser of a group of which it s a pan, provides a key management personns] senaces 1o the
Gooups,

Chgge members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expecied 1o influence, of be influenced Ly,
that parsan in thile dealirgs with the entity.

i¥} Segmentreporting

Oiperating segments are reporied in a manner consistent with the internal eeporting provided to the chigl operating
decivion-mabet of the Groups for the punpoaes of resowce dlocation and peformance auessment

TIR it It 108
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Changes in accounting policies

Thie HKRCPA has sued @ mumber of ameondments to HEFRSs that ane fint effectyve foe the cument accounting period of the Groups.
OF these, the folowing amendments fo HEFRS: are relevant to the Trest's and the Company's consalidated financlal statoments

- Amendments to HEAS 1, Pretenigiicn of froncial staterments - Classilication of Babities es cument or non-comend and
amendrmeants to HKAS 1, Presentaticn of financhal saterments - Mon-cuurend Vabdithes with covenant

= HEInerpeetation 5 (Revised], Presertation of fnancicd stateémients = Dassffoation by the bosrower of a herm joon ol conlaim o
repayment on demand clause

The adaptien of these amendments does nof hine a materal Impact on the Groups" results and financial posations for the cusrent of

prior periods. The Grougs have not applied any ney standand, amendment of interpretation that b not yet eflective for the cument
accounting period

Revenus

The principe! sctiaty of the Groups Is the genertion snd supply of eecticity 1o Hong Kong Bland snd Lanma bland,
Disagansgation of rmenue by e of sutpur and senrdees 1§ anabyaed as follmw

2024 2023

— & million 5 million

Sales of elecicity 12018 113
Lest: concessionany iscount on sales of electriclty. . B

12012 11,514

Electricay-related incenne 45 92

B - 12,057 11,406

Segment reporting

Thee Groups have one repocting segment which | the generation and supply of electriclty to Hong Kong Island and Lamma hilara
Al pegment assets are located in Hong Kong, The Groups’ chief operating decision-maker reviesws the conolidsted nesults of the
Gaoups for the puiposes of rescuroe allocation and performance assssmant. Thirefione, no additional ieportable segment and
geographical nformation has been presented

Other revenue and other netincome

2024 03
§ million 4 miilion
Initierest incoemie on firancial sssers measuned 5t amoried cost = it ] 4
Supery Incame a4z Fil
mn a7

109 Aremod fepme 24 B
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B. Other operating costs
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2024 a3
Smillion 5 millkon
Administrative cxpenses, government rort and rates 385 341
Stalf costs In relation to comporate and adminlsrative supports 241 138
Proviions for asset decommissioning oblgation 85 Ta
Fortion of depreciation and amoetisation of laasehold land induded In
other aperating costs 215 s
Het lovs on divpetal and written off of property, plant and equipment 125 56
1,052 L
9. Finance costs
2024 2023
Smillion S million
Interest oo Bormowangs arid other linance costs 1714 1761
Less: mterest experse and other finance costs capitalised 1o assets under constiuction (287] {366
Inrerea Experse rrarsfemed w fued coans 291 135)
Total nterest expense ansing from bomowings and other finance costs 1,408 1360
Intevest expense hay been capitalisad at an average mate of approxdmatedy 2.3% (2023 3.3%) per annum for assets under
CONSTUCtion.
10. Profit before taxation
2024 073
$million £ millice
Prodit belore tadition Is amhéed Gt alter changing:
Dapheciation
- cnid propety, glant and equipment 3073 2.504
- properies ieased for own wse 2 [
Amartation af leasehold Lend 195 95
Expenses of shor-term leases 8 5
Covts of inventonme= 5648 BEAT
Wit down of inventodies 13 1]
SIafT coars 758 T34
Mt loas on depodal and wiritten olf of property, plang and equipment 128 Ha
ALTEES remuneration
~ awiedit and audit relsted sendces & 5

~ por-audic serices {wee note below]

Auditor's remuneraton for non-aiudi services amounted to 5334000 (2632 3: 5785000

HEE e imeEimin 110
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11. Income tax in the consalidated statement of profit or loss

{a] Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss represents:

2024 1023
& million 5 million
Current tax
Prizes bati fioe Hong Kong Profits Ta for the yesr ™ e
Deferred tax [we note 25b)
Criginaton and ieversal of lemponny dilfeenges - [2653)
T4 £45

The provision fior Hong Kong Pralics Tax fer 2024 b caloulated at 16.5% 2023 16.5%)] of the estimarad ascesaabls profits for the
year, except for one subsdiaey of the Groups which i a qualifying copotion under the two-tiered Profits Tas rate regime,

o this subsidiary, the first 52 million of assessatde profits are taeed at B25% and the remalning assessable peofits are fxed at
16.5% The prosdshon for Hong Kong Profits Tax foe this subsadiany was calculated ae the same bash in 2023

Pursuant to the nules and regulations of the Cayman slands ard the British Vingin tslands, the Groups are exempt from any
meomae tas in these juriadicrions,

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

2024 023

& million % million

Prefit befone tasation 4,080 1616
Hertlonad s on peofic befone teation, calculaed at the Hong Kong

Profits Taw rate {see nobe below] 673 ey

Tan effect of non-deductible expenses B7 a2

Tan offect of non-taxable income (4] 51

Tanm offect of recogrition of previously umnecognised termporary défferencos (15} (28]

At Gk prpense T4 46

For the year ended 31 December 2004, the notional tax & calculated at 10.5% (2073 16.5%], except for one subsidiary of
the Geoups which is o qualfing camporation under the tao-tienod Prafits Tax rate regime, For this subsidiany, tax on the fire
52 million of profits i caloulated at 8.25% and lax on the remaining profits b calowated ot 1655 The notienad tax of thiy
siabralcdiany b calcudatond at the saime buadn as 2003,

i Aremod fepae 24 B
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)

12. Directors’ emoluments and management team remuneration

Dipctors’ emaluments comprise payments to Diectos by the Company and ity subsidiaries in connection wah the managemant of
the affairs of the Compary and ifs subsidades. The emeluments of cach of the Directoes of the Company ase an follows

Basie
slarlas,
allowanges Ratiremant ot X
and ather schama Total Total
Fees benedits™  confributions Bormses  emoluments emalumenty
Hame of Directors § million S millica § million § malllion 5 million §milion
Executive Directars |
=l tk'uh.nJ i anning L
Charman o 11§ - = 1.7 157
(Cherg (Tha Ving, Fundy ™5
{heef Frcutive OFice am a2 - A 1083 S
{Chan Lo Shas am 187 - - 74 19
Wvan Ying Leyng = a® in a3 145 LE ] a8
Warg Yuanlurg o 155 oo L i wr
wan CRiTin ® = 1153
Hon-gaecutive Direcion
Wl TEL™
Diepty (Fentmin I e Comyany Soard 0 048 05T i
Fahat bamad 4 H A-Matarnss o oar (1114
Fonald Joweph Arculli ® 0 acr - E aon L P ]
Carwert Anand Kar-il o = B oar U
wang Tigan agr 087 TN
PruGapngct Lifan) . . - oar 1
Indapendent Hon-executhve Directors
Froong Chi W Ml ™% an o 01s 04
EahFohweh™ (iR . . - o4 4
Wavan Kal Checeg ™ 0m Qg . - LR F] 0
Lo Lan Ve s 0 ® a1 [ale . [ ] BiF
Garerge abn Mag am ans . LR} A1
Dionald Jeftioy Aoherm e 06 Qe . - wr i
Ahernate Dirsctors
Frang hnSbe ™ 1} - - 008 o4
oo MaFong, Sussn
Ll Chow Wy Moo Py, Suman) ™ B & 2 F = o0
Tatal for the year 2024 1.68 17.04 Q.45 a2 o
Tl for the year 2123 14 1IN [1FE rar 152
Wi " J12
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Sarsce managemsnt of he Groups comyeises sl Execucse Deecon

Member ol 1he Trustee-Manager Audit Commities and the Compary Audin Camminee,

Itk ool 1hee Rerrwinesation Comirin s

Mamber of the Momination Cammittes.

Member ol 1he Sustainabiiny Commites:

An Alimraie Direcioe 10 M Vicio: TELI

Aopoinged a5 Chad Executive Officer and the Chalmman of the Susainabding Commimee with efiect from 1 July 2023

Apypioirnied a5 Faer e Dimoton o meriber of this Susiamabelidy Cnemim niss wib sfieci from [ kily X121

Fased s Executhe Dieector and Chief Evecusie Officer, and concurenitly ceased 10 be the Chairmen of tre Sustainabilcy Comminee wth
Fect rom | July 3073

Ceaed 10 a0 as Alnenare Direcice so W Fok K Reng, Caneing with wiflect feom 1 July S0

Ot bonafiis inchude eleciriory alowances ro Diregrors for residontial uoe. or Dieecion who an employess of thi Goupe, other benofin
abso include insumance and medscal berefies entitied by the employees of the Groupa,

Thet fivee highiest i incividuads of the Groups included two directons (023 thies) whaose SOl emolu ments s shown
sbowe The remuneration of the other three dividualy (2023 two) who comprise the e highest pad mdividusls of the:
Garoripe i 52 our belewe

2024 201

S million & million

Baske salunes, allewances and ather benefis 10.46 748
Retirermnent scheme condritaions 142 098
Bornsses 3.96 93
15.84 1138

The toal rermuneration of management team, induding the throe individuals (2003 two) who comprise the five highest paid
midrdduals In rote i) sbove B within the following hands:

2024 a3
Hil - S500.000 1 -
51,500,007 - $2,000,000 - I
43,000,001 — 53,500,000 3 3
53,500,000 - 5$4000,000 5 5
$4,000,001 - 54,500,000 1 .
55,500,001 — 56,000,000 2 2
The remuneeation af Directon and managoment toam b a5 foallows:

2024 2023
- 5 million 5 millign
Shoetlmm empioyes benefity &7 73
Past-ampiaymnent benallts . 4= 3
m 6

A3t December 2024 snd 2023, theie was i 0t Sy fredn Diectom 3nd manigement [am.

113 Aol fepoe 20 B
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)

13. Schame of Control transfers

&l The financial opeations of HE Ekctric are governed by the SolA agreed with the Goserrment which prasdides for HE Bectrc
toearn a Permitted Aetum (so0 note J]). Any oxoess of deficency of the gross tariff reveriso over the suem of total aperting
costs, Scheme of Control Net Retum and 5cheme of Control tasation charges (s transfered to/(Fromd a Tarilf Sabdisstion
Fund from/{1o] the statement of peofit o1 loss of HE Eleciric. When transfer froem the Taifl Statulisation Fund to the statement
of profit of loss is required, the amourt transfered shall not exceed the batance of the Tarff Stabilisation Fund. in addition, a
charge caculated by applying the avemge onemonth Hong Kong Inerbank Offevedd Rate on the aeerage halanoe of the Taeif
Snabilisation Furd i transfermed froen the staterent of pofit o loss of HK Eleciric to.a Rate Reduction Resenve,

Under curent 5608, a Smart Fower Cane Fund was established an 1 lanuany 2009 with inktial funding peovided by the net
chosing balance as at 31 Decomber 301 8 of the Smart Power Fund, which was essablished pursuant to 2013 mid-ferm redew
of 2000 - 2018 S5oCA, to promate energy effickency’ and comenvation, such as accelerating end-use enemgy elficiency through
proghimmies deskined o belp nesidiential, industral and comemircial ouslomen, and sheo deadvantiged cuslorien/gioups 1o
feplace of upgrade end-use applances to moe enengy-cfficient elecirical modols. HE Electrc consentied 16 deduct an amound
ool fo 65% of the Enerngy Effickency Incenthee Armaunt of each year during the period bom 1 January 2019 to 31 December
2033 Tor tunding the contribution to the Smart Power Care Fund provided that there is.an Energy Eficiency Incentive Amount
I respect of that yes,

b Schemeof Controd transhers from/(ta) the consolidated staberment of piofit or loss rephesents

2024 2023

S million & million

Tatiff Stabilsation Fund 155 (155)
Have Reduction Resene 32 3

Smart Poweer Cae Fund

= Prowisional sum injected in curent year - 13
= Provisional sum to be Injected in the following year . 5
238 [

A provisional surn of 540,499,000, representing deduction of HE Electrics 2024 inancial incentive (02 % 538,391 000, was
reansfered fram the cansalidated aatement of profy or kae and included in the tmde ard ather payables and contact
[Ralliries 24 ar 31 December 2024 for injection inta the Smant Pawer Cans Furnd bn the fallowing year.

CT | LT e snmm—— 114
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Miovementi bt the Tadlf Stabdatan Fund, Rate Recuction Resreve and Srman Powees Cane Fund ame ai foldlows

& rniftben

At Januany 2023
Tranaded from Rate Reduction Beserve 1o
Tandl Stabilisation Fund (see note | below)
Transfer ropiram the consalidated aatement of
ol o ks
njection for the yaar
Disburzament lor the year (see nota 7 below]

At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024
Timnafor from Rate Reduction Beserve 1o
Tarff Senbifisation Fund {see note 1 belowd
Tranaded from the carsolidatad statamant af
pricli of koss
nectian for the yaar
Disbursement for the year

At 31 December 2024

Tariff
Stabilisation

kA

155

Rate
Reduction

Raserve
I

n

iz

Smart Power
Care Fund

iy

Tatal
912

{274
45
(53]

&70

187
Fid
(LE1]
868

Ayt 1 Pourmuaant 1o Sol A, the year-end balace ol the Rale lediclion Rewme of & your Fras, by e rareerned 1o fhe Tanl Stalal=ation Ford

it Salawine et

Moled  Dabwrament for JOE inchaded specil secinoly ubredy of 95 cénty per Lnd of elscine fy which was ollened ko edidental
cugssmen eorireneg 300 units of electicey or bess in o month. Total specisl dectnic ity wdsidy phosdded i X0 amcuried &

S38Ea 000

115
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)

14. Distributions/dividends

fa) The distributable income for the year was as follows:

2024 00
S million 5 milligen
Audfited consolidated profi attibutable to the holders of Shate Stapled Units m 3156
Aller
(i elimirating the ofeets of the Adhstments (e nats | balmd 5807 5306
(i addingTheducting]
= meermenl in Fuel Clsse Recoveny ACcount 162 1,345
- changes In workng capital (43) (EC3)
adustment for employes reteement benefs (chemes 116] [
= tared pald 11, 408) 1168
1,308 55
(i) copital expenditure payment 13,787] 4087
(vl detcting
dabi iepayment - [LEry ]
= i inonce coses 11,499 {1527
_ 11,499 (2.504)
Dearibunadie income: 2329 2426
v} adding discretinany amaunt 5% determined by the Comgany Board
pursuant 1o clause 14,10 of the Teust Daed (see note 4 below) 501 404
[isaributaile income after adjustment of the discrationary amount 2,830 ZER0

Mate | Pumisant tooclaiss 1| o the T Desd, “Aduntmenis” moudey, Bid not biveted io i) iramfers timTrom the Tanll Saatdasion
Furd ard 1he Rale Reduction Reserse urder the Schema ol Contral, {F) ursralised isvaloation gaintioise, induding impaiment
iy arsd eewersibs of impusmen] peossbon (i impasmenl of pmlﬁlﬂnn@'ﬂ-uﬂ:ﬂ'wlnv-}mdm&hbn‘ulenﬂ
rar-Cah garlcstes; (v oovts of sy puible olferng of Shuns Slapied Linits that dne evpensad icugh the consalidated testemaent
of profit of lorss bt ane funded by proceedh from the Bssance of such Share Stapled Linits; §i) depreciation mnd smortsat o
(il nme i b s shavm in e corashduled watameng of prolil or loag and (il net linanse incomefemty as chowr in (e
coraodcabed wtatemend of prolit o less.

Mate 2 TMTWMMMTFMEEWW bkt al 17 Trathio damibute 1008, of (he diadends, dittibutions snd other
amsounss feceved by the Trostee-WManade: i redpect of the codintdy shanes Iram the Company, BMer deduction of ol smous
pesmeblad ko be dedacted of peid inde the Truns Deed

Maled  The datibuton ieteresd by the Tristes-Mandges Diom 1he Cotgny wll b deined Som he Gioup Distribadable come
whitch i referad s audited consolidsted profit miriutabie 1o the holden of Shane Stapied Linit for 1he nsevant Brsncial pear of
dastiburtan perod, Afer madng sdhitments inrespect of e 53 56l ot n the Trus Deed

Noted  Indetormining the datribution amourit, the Company Boded has takon into acecuant the Croup's finandal pedosmance schicved
eluting the year s its slabie cotldloyw fiorn opeations, sl conaldet i abproprate o aclnmd the datiburabie o for he ye

k] 51 Disturrlinr 2074, as caleubited puruart (6 the Trust Desd, by the abuive dacrstenery mount, jlrant i@ chane 14 1)
ol the Teuat Dieed

W Vi imeeimonn 116
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(b] DMstributions/dividends payable to holders of Share Stapled Units/shares of the Company attributable

to the year
2024 2023
5 million 5 millicn
e distr butionyTiest infeim dividend deciaed and paid of 1594 cents
(203% 1594 cents) par Shame Stapled Unitfshae 1,408 1,408
Final distributiondsecond irmerim dividend pio posed after the end of the eeporting
penod of 16.09 cents (023 1609 cents] per Share Stapled Linidshane 1422 1422
1,830 2830

Foa the year ended 31 December 3024, the Company Board declaned the payment of a second inberdm dividend of 1609 cents
peer cedinary shame (023 1ACK cents per ondinasy shaee], amoanting o 51423 milion (2023 51,432 milllon). in feu of 3 fnad
ditvidend after the end of the reportng pestiod and thesdtone no final dividend was proposed Ly the Comipany Board

Fign the year ended 31 Decomber 2024, the Trustes-Manages Boaed declired o fingd dissribation of 1605 centy per Share
Stapled Uit (2033 1606 cents per Share Stapled Unit), amaurting ta 51423 million (023 51,232 million), after the end of the
nepoting period

The il distiutishecond mtetim didend declingd after the end af the ieporting perod & based on the number of
Shared Stapled Unitvardinary shanes of the Company af 8836200000 a4 a1 31 December 2024 (2073; 8836 200,000). The firal
dinibution/seoond intedm dividend declared after the end al the reponting perlod had rot been recognied a5 a lHabiiny at
the end of the nepoting pstiod.

ic} Distributions/dividends payable to holders of Share Stapled Units/shares of the Company attributable
ta the previous financial year, approved and paid during the year

2024 2021
% million & milllan
Final distribution/second inmerim diddend in mspect of the previoan financizl year,
appieved and paid during the vear, of 1609 cemts (2023 1609 canty)
per Share Staplad Univ/share 1422 1422

15. Earnings per Share Stapled Unit/share of the Company
The caleulation of Baske ard diuted earnings per Share Stapled Unit/share of the Company are hated on the profi ateibutable
o the halders of Share Stagled Unirond nary shares of the Company of $3,111 million (2023 53,156 million) and the weighted

meerage of 8836200000 Share Sapled Lintv'ordinary shanes of the Company (2023 8,836, 200,000 Share Stapled Unitywondnany
ikuires of 1he Conparmyd in e duiing he yeai.

117 Arrwd fepat 4 Wl
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Financial Statemeants

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)

16. Property, plant and equipment and interests in leasehold land

Flant, Fatures, latareitiin
Ska Properties.  machinary fittings Teasahold
Teemation Beased for ad  edmeter  Auetsusde Lared bl
§ millon and by idings. mwmuse  equipnent wehicls comatruction Subdotal  lerownuse Totd
Cost
M| by K13 P ] I - Lk ] 148 il LN ] L) WML 1E
Alcitiom: e 3 F] i 42 FE] ! TELs
Trarvilen m s ] L o] a - E
gy {18 1| MR [LH] - i - LB
&t 31 Decembar 1033 and
1 hasary 2024 1460 4 BEBE 1513 5 i 6361 106162
Adciriom = 1 52 ® 35n 1551 - 18
Trarvder 1561 - e kL] [B854] - - =
Dhpena L] i 1B an - (ve) il a3
At 31 Ducwember 1034 i i e 15 L 1606 6560 108,808
Monumelated depredation
and amertisation
& | ey K1 4515 | 1809 g = 5 (BrE] Hs
Veien back on dapoui i il (i £ MR L] (20
(Charme for the yew L] 1 LA 14 - 008 e 14
Bt31 Decomber 1023 and
1 Jamaary 2004 57 1 18510 40 - 1508 1408 38
Vi1 ok on dnpossh 143} n [85%) a9 % fi42] = i
Chamge-for the year L] 1 il 148 - e s 133
At 31 Decembar 1029 e i s L2k - Hss FAH] A
et boak valur
At 31 Docomber 1034 RER )] 1 L1k £30 L] man 4807 et
Ap 11 Deember 10 Thedd } #1148 H] 1054

Ml il el

Thit above are mainky slecticity-nelated prapey. plant and equipment in respect of which inancing codts capitalied during the
year amonted 10 5287 million [2023; 5366 mdank,

D presciation chardes fon the yeae inchaded §1 14 milion 073 5103 million), relating 10 assets utified in dveopment acthvities,
which hawe been capitalised

118
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17. Goodwill
{a) Carrying amount of goodwill
2024 2033
& million 5 million
Cent
AL lanuary st 31 Decernber 33,623 33623

()

Impairment test for goodwill

HX Hectric ks the Groaps’ only cash-generating unit (06U 1o which the goodwill has been slocated,

i the cave of triggering events and 1 least amnually, the Groups test whisther the goodwill has suffered amy impalnment.
Recoverabde amount of the CGL, o which the goodwill has been allocated, wat delerminad based on valiso-n-use
calculations, Thess caloulations use pee-tin cash flonw projections based on financial budgets approved by management
cowering a 1 f-year peiod (023 16-yra period), Profactions tor a pedod of geater than e years have been used on the
basls Ehat 3 bonger prosection period represents the long-lived nature of generation, tranumission and detribution assets and
a more approgriate refiection of future cash flows of HE Eleciric under the requlatory regime. Thee cash flow prosections ae
descounted using 4 pre-tax discount mte of 6.63% G033 7.08%). The discourt rite used reflocts specific risks relating to the
redevant CGL, Cash iows beyond the 16-year perlod ae extrapolated using the terminal growth rate of 1056 (2023 10%)

Thene wis no indication of impakment artsing fiom revics on goodwell as at 33 Nowemiber 2004,
i the dhoount rabe o to 7.26% (X023 7.179%], the recoverable amount of the COL wauld be approsimately sgual to

A5 carrying amount. Except th, any ressonably possible changes in the ather bey assumpons used it value-in-wae
calculation would not affect manaGerment’s wieve 0n impalrment test rea as ot 30 Movembes 2024,

1149 Arewod fiepmt 24 1l B
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Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)

18. Investments in subsidiaries

Datalls of the wubsidiaries at 31 December 2024 ae a follows
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Issued share Percentage of Place of
capital and equity held by Incorporation/
Name of subsidiary debt securities tha Company operation Principal activity
Century Rank Lmitec uss1 100 Beitish Viegin Blandy Investmient holdng
Hang Kang
Treasure Business Lanited Uss1 100 * Beitish Viegin ksland” Ivvestment haldng
Hang Kang
Thie Homigiaong Electric HES2 A1 00,000 Qe Hang Kong Biectricity generition
Company, Limited and vappy
I-lr.n.l]h'n] Electric [1En A | Beitish "."h'lllr.:-\.larrlv Flrare: g
Fimarce Limited HKSE, 404 million Hzng Kong
Hong hong dole
lmed rate notes
LS5, 750 million
Linstied States dole
fiwed rate noled
HES1 056 millian
HOnig Knng doliar
FeA0 CORDCN Molel
55400 million
Linged Saates doliar
calaie e
COUgCn NGTES
[ase Fighe 25]
1 Indiepcty held

120
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Ceatails of the Groups” intetest in a joint venitere, which s aocounted for using the equity method in the consalidated financial

skaborments, So ak follows:

Issued share

Mamae of joint vanture capital

Hang Kong LNG Terminal Lmited s10
[FHELTL™Y

Groups”

effective

Intarast
£l

Place of
Incorporation/
aperation Principal activity
Hang Kong Demandop, comstruct, opemte,
muaintain and owin a liquefied
natuzal gas (LNG) 1emminal in
Haong Kong and providing
ralatod sendces

HELTL b joirvtly cowmed by HI Electric and Castle Paak Pawer Company Limited ("CAPCDT for the development af an LNG terminat
inHang Kang. HELTL it a jomnt wentune of HE Elsetric and CAPCD at its algnificant opsrationisl and financla! deciilom ibsquine

unanous condent of bath shareholder.

FKL TIL, the esnly foint sentiine in which the Grours pantkcipate, 14 a9 unfisied comporate entity whose quoted market price i rot

v labe,

Summarised financial information below represents amaunts shawn in HELTL' financial stoterments prepaned in accoedance wih

HEFRSS and the Croups’ share of results and ner asses:

2024 2023
£ million £ milfion
Cufnenl sty
Bank depasns and cach - n
Cithedr Carment a55815 189 14
189 125
Hen-curent assets 5,020 4971
Curren liabiley
Loars rom shareholders [BE} (8]
Firanria! BEabdities [1az| 11N
Trade and other payables (198 [273)
(428} 211
Mom-current labilities
Lians from shareholders (2.868) (2596]
Mon-curent financial labties {1,913) (1. 781)
: 14,781} {46771
Met assets - -
Reveriug 185 7
Pralie far the year - -
(rher camprebenive income - -
Total cormpetenive incoms - -
Inchuded in aboye prolit;
Depreciation and amaoetisatsom 2867 123
Finance costy 257 (s

21
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)

19. Interest ina joint venture [continued)

2024 03

Smillion 5 million

oy’ shaie of not assets - -
Lean to joint ventune (see nate below) 887 845
887 595

HE Electric ertered imta a Sharehalder Loan Fac sy Agreement ["SLEA®) in 2019 with HELTL under which e tranched of laan
Tacilities totating 5669 millon are provided by HE Blectrc to finance HELTL s obtxning the bnd lease and cortniction of the petty
T Ak LG terminad. Boah tranches of loans am ursecured and intenest-biarmg wiah the rtes benhrmastiad with rarket males

¥, Elextric ard HKLTL further entered into twe Amendment Agieements 16 the SLEA meapectively in 2022 and 2023 b0 increase the
o tranchiess of laan Beilaies 1o 2978 million

20, Inventories
2024 2023
Smillion % milliony
Cial, fesl ol and nanral gas 673 £33
Srodess ard materials [see note below) k1] m
982 1003

Inchuded in stores and materals b caphal stock of 155 million (2023: 51 38 millon) which was purchased for future maintenance of
capital assets.

21. Trade and other receivables

2024 2023

Smillion £ milligen

Trasche dhebitiois, riet ol ko allowaice (see nates ) and (1) below) 481 74
e tecenvabies (see note Below) e 2020 @
1,265 1375

Dareaifee firancal Instuments lsee pote 26) 2 1
Dapatits arsd prepayments N a3
1358 LAG3

All of the trade and other receivables are expecied 10 be recovered within ore year.

Ot recetyables of the Groups nclude unbiled slectricny charges of $443 million (2023: 5489 millon) 10 be received from
aleciriciy customarns

N Bt It 122
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Ageing analysis of trade debtors

The ageing anahsis of rade debsors based on Imeoke dats, which are nefther individually nor collectively considered to ba
mipialned, is 3 follows:

2024 203

S million £ millian

Cugrent and withan 1 month 614 el
1 tor 3 manths 53 a8
Miore than 3 months but less than 12 morths 4 12

681 T4

Electriciy bills ssaeed 1o resicential, smal industral, commencial and miscelaneous customess for slechicity supphes are due
upon preserdation sheresy masimum demand customiens are allowed 3 oedat peviod of 16 working days, B settlements by
maximum dernang custormen are recessed alter Ui credil penod, & surcharge of 5% can be acdded (ot sectricity Ll

Expected credit losses of trade debtors

The Gloups measine boss allowainges for trade deblods 81 an amadnt egual 1o |fetime ECLY, which s caloubyed wano a
provision matr The Groups determing the proviskon for BOLL by grouping together trade debiors with simiar credit

risk characteristics nnd collectiviely sssesong them fos likeliheod of recereny, mbdng irta sccount prevaiing economic
erviranmant. For rade detiors rzlating 1o acoounts which are lang averdies with signdficant amounts of known insshenciss
of nof-response 1 collection aavities, they ane assessed individually for impalrment #llowance.

The Garowps elazaify trades debiron by nature of customes aceounts namely e accaunts and finsl accounts. The fallowing
1atie provides mbormation abous the Groups' exposure to oredit ik and ECLs for tade debiors:

2024
Griss

carrying Lifetime Nat carrying

ECL rate amount ECLs amount

% Smillion 4 million Smillion
Live aCoounts

Proremsion on coleciise basis 2 663 1 652
Final accounts

Prowision on indsidual basis 15 0 3 17

Onher trade debrors
Mrowvision on colecthe basis o 12 - 12
6095 na) 681
123 Aol fepoe 24 Wl
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)

21. Trade and other receivables (continued)

(b) Expected creditlosses of trade debtors (continued)

2023
Gipcris
cMrying Lifetime Het carmying
ECL ratis Sirous ECLs Afmouy
% £ millisn & mmilllicsht £ millaa
Livet accounts
Prowduion on colectre bl ? & (RES] G678
Finad accounts
Prowriian on indedcual basis 17 a2 (1] L
Onher Lrasde debion
Prowign on coletine bak 0 rid = a8
741 ] 724

HE Electiic abtained colateral In the farm of secutity depasits of bark guarantess fiarm Cullomers (See nots 31(aj)

Meriement in the koss allowance accournt i respect of tade debitors during the year s as follows:

2024 2023

Smillion % million

At Larwsang 17 14
Impatiment losses tecognised during the year 1 5
Amounts written aff dusing the year 4] L]

At 31 December 14 Lk}
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22. Bank deposits and cash and other cash flow information

{a) Bank deposits and cash comprise:

2024 033
5 million % million
Cash at bank ared in Fand i) 21
Barik overdialls - unisgused [45) (44]
Cash and cash equivalents in the comolidated cash Nlow statement [15) (23
Hank creardiafls - unseouted a5 a4
Ban b depoiits dnd cash in the condobdaled stmlemenl Of Tnanclil position ti 21
{b] Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated from operations:
2024 023
Herte £ million £ milllan
Profit bofore taxation 4,080 216
Adpstments for:
intefett noome ) (39 {44]
Financeo costs 9 1,408 1360
interest eupense transfermed o fusl costs ] 9 35
Depreciation s} 3,075 2805
Amoriation ol lesehold wnd 10 195 196
et kass on dispasal and wisten off of propesty, plant and equipment 10 125 5y
Increase In provisions foe avset decommiisioning abiigation 20(a) 86 b ]
Mt firancial instnament revaluation and exchange gains m 2
Changes in vwarking capital
Decnaase n inventories 18 aad
Decrease n trade and other receivables B0 158
Moremannts in Fueld Clause Recowery Aocound 162 1845
Decrease n trade and other pavables and contract lablities (92} (1.280)
increasefdeciease in net emplayee retirement benefit assetylabilties [1&} qli]
Payrresnit Sar adset decommissioning obligation expe ndiune F8ia) [&T) [124)
Smart Povwer Cate Fund disburssment 130l [14) (631
Cash genesated fiom opesations 9,049 9,460
125 Aol fepoe 24 Wl
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Financial Statemeants

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)

22. Bank deposits and cash and other cash flow information (continued)
(e} Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

The table belov details changes inthe Grougs' linbilites from fnanc ing acthitied, includng bath cash and non-cash changed
Liakslities arizinng from financing otities are latiliie for which canh flown weete, Ot fugure cash fiows wil be classifisd in the
Groups” consaligated cash flow statement a8 cash Nlows fnom Ananding actdtics

Derrvative  Deeivative
financial fisancial
inttrumest  instrament
haldto held to
hedge hedge
Medum  Customers’ Lease  boerowings  bomowings
Bank loars. bermnates depeaits fabiities {asaety]  [lishilithes) Totad
e (ot 50 e 15 ridie 2Eh
A Jahisary 204 nny FEALLY 148 1 (a3 (1] 52052
rl. ra = i [ T—
Proisact Foem bunh o, @y - - - - - [H]
Festerrprion of medhrs e soes - [L51] - - - - 308
Paryrre of leass labiiciey - - - [+] - - [+]
M b e - - 15 i = = 325
PBecapment ol petomen’ depoum = = 2m = = [
o chancss om finangog cnh lowy oy L] L1 ] [Fi] - 43
Changes imLair valu . B - - jFi |28 o
Other changes:
e i e Rl e - - ,. 1 - : 1
Izt on oo and ot TranCeoxits M nz - - - - il
ALTN December 2004 o man L50 1 |576] LiH 858
| 26
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Do Derviie
francid fronds
FICRUTITR EaTuTel
hed o e
hecige hecoe
Wedum  Cuomey [P
b laars e e e ke et ] [k -+
S milon e =] ke 2k
81 Jarvsary 2023 FEL 1 LFr, an | [iF--: ] u L
Changes from fisaeding cud fowc
[ e 250 - - - - - 350
Pecrnens of husk i el 1] - - - - - ATH
Pezermpl on o e e fgess - [ - - - - fLin]
Faymmeend of feass ksl - - - ! - - il
P cuslz e deprats - - m - - - i
Pegynet of Culoren Sepoas - - 43 - - - o2
ool chinges boes frunore tach fow e 1 ] E il - - LI
Changes inlalr walue - - - - & H &0
(Other changes:
Proeaie rexs laoiees - - - i - i
Irizesist o Romicvwarcs.and odee Snance oo T i - - = - o1
1431 December 2003 ann bl b ] i it W L7l v]
23. Trade and other payables and contract liabilities
2024 2023
& million £ million
Trade and other payables
Creditors measured ot amartised cos (3er note L) below) 2,742 3,381
Leardes liabilittes (w6 nate 28k 1 2
Derivative finarcial inatiuments fise nate 26] 1 !
AELITOLIE 100 10T VEINE SE8 PR PN L=
2,745 3384
Contract liabilities (102 noee (1) o) ar 3
2,787 7
All of the trade and other payables are expecied o be settled within one year or are repayable on demand.
127 Arewod fiepmt 24 1l B
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)

23. Trade and other payables and contract liabilities (continued)

(a)

]

Creditors’ ageing is analysed as follows:

2024 033
4 million 5 millign
Dues within 1 momh or on derrand 1,108 1353
Do &ter | month but wathin 3 manths 753 201
e after 3 maaths but within 12 montha i8-8 1LE2F
2,742 1351
Contract liabilities
(Il The contract lakilities relate to the advance corslderation recetved from customers foe clectricity- related servioes,

which conststs mainly of (1) permanent supply service, primanky assoclated with the supply of slectriciny fo customer
substatiors for large new devalopments and bo small new devesoprments withoa customer substation praviskons, and
(2} st service primarily assocliated with the termposany supply of electnicRy to constniction s8es or special functians, for
which revenue b recognisad upon completion of the electricty-relafed sendces

(il Movernents in conract Babdities during the yeat is as Tollows

2024 073

S million & milliem

AL 1 Janaary 33 a3
Increase in contract Rabililey a3 & nesult of billing in sdyvance for

performance of clectricity-relmted services 26 ]
Decrrase In contract Eabilities &5 2 msult of recogning rvende

during the year that was included in the contract Rabilites
atthe beginning of the yea o i
A2 31 December 42 13

128
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Fuel Clause Recovery Account

H Elesctric adjusts Fuel Clause Charge per wnit for electnicty salos ona manthly basis to reflect actual cost of fusls ina timely
manner, in May 2023, Spaclal Fuel Rebate of 11 cents per unit of cloctricity was offered o all our custemers 5035 1o fieeno the Fuel

Clause Change payable at Apnl J023 bevel

Morvermiants in the Fuel Clause Recovery Accound were as foliows:

2024 2023
- 5 millian : & million
AL T January 53 (1,658
Transfeired to prafit or loss 14,184 (51
Fued Clwse Changes duting the ynar 4,346 1356
Special Fue! Aehates during the year - (8[|
At 31 Decermber 215 53
This sceodift, inchrihe of intanse, han been and will continue 1o be Lived 16 Wikl slectricty tarffe
Bank loans and other interest-bearing borrowings
2024 2003
Smillion £ million
Bani lnars 23,738 3mz?
Cument poion (427} {415
23,31 12602
Hang Kang dollar medium term notes
Flxed rate notes {see note (a) below] 8,365 a6l
Zero Coupon rotes (see note k) below) 863 B34
9,228 9455
Curent pofion (300 [300]
8,926 9195
Uiniged States ooilar mried wirm fEim inoies. .
Fised rate notes [see note () below] 13,587 13581
oo coupon rotes {set note (D) below) 4,247 A0
17,544 17,650
Won-curent poigion 50,083 EEECE

() The Hong Kong dollar foeed rate nobes bear mterest 9 rates tanging from 24% (o 4% per annam (2003; 245 1o 4% per

annum],

The Uinited States dollr feeed rate nobes besi interesdt af rates ranging from 1 875% to 2875% per annuim (2023: | §75% 1o

LATE pet annumy,

129
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)

25. Bank loans and other interest-baaring borrowings (continuad)

(b)Y  The Hong Kong dolar teno coupon notes which were sued an discount have nominal amaunt of 51,056 milon (2003
£1,066 million) and aconal vield of 25% per annum EAF3: 35% por annum)

Thee United States diollar zemo coupon notes have nominal srmownt of LS540 mifkon (2023 USS00 millon) and acoual yield
of 4.3 1%% perannum (2023:4.375% per annum), These nobes embed with ssuer call aptions aliowing isuer 1o early redeem
thee nates and are callable on 12 October 2002 and annually thereafter untd the pealfimare year to maturity,

ich  Dwetalls of the tssuer of the Hong Kong dollar and Linfed States dodsr medasm term nodes ane set out innote 18,

(e Banking facities of the Geoups ane subject to the fulfllment of covenants relating to cetain of the Groups’ statement of
profit o loss and statement of financhl position rathos, which are avsessed at the end of gach intesim andior annual perod,
a ang commonly lound n lending anangerments with inancial natduticns, If the Groups vweoe (0 breach the covenanls, the
drmam down Faciltics would boecome payable on demand and any undrwn amount will be cancelled. The Graups regulinky
moniEnrs i compliance with these covenantt and do not kdentify any ditficulties in compiydng with these covenants. Furthes
detaih of the Groups’ management of liquidity risk ane set out innote 31BL As ot 31 December 2004 ard 2023, none of the
comnerants ieisting 1o drawn down facitien had been breached,

(g} Moneof the non-curment interedt:bearing bormowings i expected 10 be settlad within one year. Al the above bonrowdngs ame
unpeced,

The non-Cunent |mmu-b¢:|rﬂ1g Mrlnnmg_-l. ane memryatie o8 folows

2024 2023
— $million $ millon
After 1 year but within 2 years 22,168 00
Adfter 3 yeais but wathin 5 yean 8,833 29074
Adter 5 years 19,092 15,173
50,083 AG.447
26. Derivative financial instruments
2024 Z'EIL?:
Assels Liabilities Askets Liabiliries
S mlllion Smillien 4 million 5 million
Derivative flinancial Instruments used for
hedging:
Cash fiow hedges
= Cross curmpncy swaps = (88) - wa
— Interest rate swaps 483 in L) (284
— Farwiaed forelgn exchangs contracts 135 (68] 138 (64}
618 157 738 [{1:0]]
Analysed 2
Curent 2 i I i
an-cumrent 616 1156) Fi? [LE:18]
618 157 38 (1)
T ] ee— 130
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27. Employee retirement benafits
The Groups offer thees etirement schemas which together cover all permanent staff.

One of the schemes (the "Pension Scheme®) provides penskon benedits based on the employee’s final basc salary and length of
seryice, This schame & acoounded for as a defined benefit retirernent schisrme.

Anather scheme b defimed contriteition In natue fthe “Defined Comribution Scheme®l and offers ks members various vaestmend
turwds In which they can irvest. e of the investment funds peoiddes a guaranteed retam and b than delined Benelit in natune;

the part of the Defined Contribution Schems in respect of this irvestment fund is accounted foras a defined benefn retirement
sehieme [ Defined Contribution Scheme - OB Portlon®. In respoct of ather insestmeent funds which da nat offer a guarantoed retum,
the schemie b accourted for as & defined contritution rtirement scheme ["Defined Contribution Scheme - DC Portion™] (see note
Fag-h8

Bath the Persion Scheme and the Dofined Contribution Schemie ans established under tust and are rogistered undar the Hong
Kang Cxcupational Retiement Schemes Ordinance The assets of the schemes ame held independenty of the Grolgs' avsen in
separate trustes acminatened hinds. The responsibility for the governance ol the schemes = inchading investrment and contribution
deciskang = by with thirincepmdens tustees i accorisnce with the st deeds of tha schemies

Since the introduction of the Mandatory Frovident Fund System in Hong Kong in December 2000, both the Pention Scheme and
U Dol Contrifsition Scheme hatve been closed to v entiants and all nevy recidits are enrolled in a master traat Mandatory
Pravidont Fund Scheme ithe “MPF Scherme”) operated by an independent service geovider undies the Hang Kong Mandatodny
Prevvidert Fund Sehemes Ordinance, The MPF Schom §s a defined contritation retiterment scheme with the emplayers and i
ermipicyees sach contributing 1o the scheme in accondance with the redsuart scherme iés, The MIF Scheme iules provide for
valuritary contribuions to be made by the employer calulaad & g percentage of the smployees’ bassc salaries,

{a) Defined benefit retirement schemes [“the Schemes™)

The furdirg palicy in respect of the Persion Scheme 5 based on valuations prepared periodically by independant
peolessionally guatlied actuaies at Wilks Tonwers Watsan Hang Kong Limited. The policy for employers contnbutions

& to fund the scheme in accomrdance with the acheans recommendations on an on-goeing bask. The peincipal achuasial
ausuinptian used Inelude discount mte, ke termy Lalany inCrease e and fulure pension |noease e which ans dieloted
o note IRk iodeter with appropste provisions for monaity ratss, wenower and adustments 1o reflect the shom-tenm
market expectation of salary increases. The most recent anuaral valuation of the Persion Scheme was camied out by

the appointed actuary, represented by M Wing Lul, FSA, a5 at 1 lanuary 2004, The waluation rovealed that the assegs of the
Fension Scheme were sufficlent to cover the aggregate vested labiities as at the valuation date,

Both delined benafit etirermant schemes expose the Geoupns to investment risk, interest rate risk and salary ek white the
Pension Scheme also exposes the Groups to risks of longevity and inflation

The retirement scheme expensefncome recogmised in peoht or loss b the year enced 31 December 2024 was detarmined in
accovdance with HKAS 19, Employes benefire

13 Aremod fepme 24 B
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)

27. Employee retiremant benefits [continued)

{a) Defined benefit retirement schemes [“the Schemes”) (continued)

il The amoumsi recagnkied in the cormolded stateman af Fnancial position ae ot follosn
2024 2023
Smillion & million
Fabr valise of Aisets of the Sehamed 3103 2085
Present vanlue of defined beneft obiigations 12.108) (2,308)
997 T
Represeniod by,
Ermiplayes retinement benefit scheme asiets 1,053 ]
Ermplayes rititemimnl bediefil scheme kabEties (58] e
997 7

A portion of the abdve ssetBability B expectad to be realisederied afer more than one yisa, However, it is not
praciecable 1o segiegale Lhs amodnl fiorm 1he amoutits payable i the st 12 mionthe, & ot e contibautlions will also
relate tofubue senvices rendesed and futune charges in actustial asumptions and matket conditians.

[{i1] Mlemernents i fair value of plan ssiets of the Scherfes sie a lollows:

2024 2073

Smillion & million

AL T Lfany 3,085 1065
Irmenesr ineome o The Schermss’ assar 95 10
Retuin on Schames’ asern, saluding iMsestincoms o6 130
Ermplayer contributions paid 1o the Schemas 0 L ¥}
Ermplayes contributions paid to the Schemes 9 3
Banefits paid 212 {2600
Az 31 December 3,103 3085

The Groups expect To-contEoute 549 miken to the Schemes in 2005

BE cic e 132
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Naeneements in the prewent value of defined benefit nbugmbm af the Schemes ane a8 folowws

A1 Larury

Currsnt sorvicp cost

Irterest cost

Ernploves conibutions paid 1o he Schemes
Actuiarial fmalnsiiadtes due to

= labdfity expesienc s

- charge in financial asumpticns

- chargs in demoaglaphic assumplions
Benefins paid

M 31 December

2024 2033
& million 5 millicn
2,308 2341
36 38
73 a5
L] G
[ 7
76} 41
[21) -
[2_12] Iiﬁﬁl_
2,106 2308

The expenses recoanised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, prior 1o any capltalisation of employment costs
attributable to addtons of property, plant and equipment, 15 as follows:

Current senvice cost

Net Int_emsl Income on ret del'iﬂed berefit assetsllability

Thae expienses ane recognised in Uhe lolkvning Bne Eerms in the condolicated stement of profit or loss

Direct conts
Cribunt operalbng costs

2024 2023

5 million 5 million
L 38
2z (24]

4 4
2024 2023

5 million 5 million
5 B

L] &

14 14

133
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)
27. Employae retirement benefits [continued)
fa) Defined benefit retirement schemes [“the Schemes™) (continued)

Wl The curmulst e amount of actuaia gains recagnised inthe corialidned statement of compesherahe (noame 4 at

Tollows:
2024 2023
$million 4 million
AL T My T60 715
Remeasuremant of net defined benetl sist/Mability recognisesd in
the comolidated staement of comgdehanshve income durning the yest 204 5
AL 3T December G644 T
il The major categores of assets of the Schemes are a3 loliews:
2024 2073
Smillion % million
Hag Kaneg equities 236 20
Europsan dquities 101 i55
Moith Armencan equities 568 57
Asia Factfic and other aqumies 147 143
Giloial bonds 2,009 3,005
Deposits, cash and others 42 45
3103 1085
Strateglc Investmient decisions am faken with respect ta the risk and nrtirn pofiles
(willl  The principal actuarial asswmptions used as at 31 Decernber are as follows
2024 2073
Ciscount rate
=The Pension Scheme 39% 1%
= The Dafined Contrbation Scheme = DB porion 3.5% 159
Lang term salary Increase rate 5.0% 50%
Futuzm pension inceease rate 2.5% 25%
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Semtitvity anahiin

(1} The Penton Scherms

Increase/idecrease] in
defined benefit obligations
2024 2023

£ million & millign
Actuarial assumptions
Discount rae
= Increade by 025 (31} (36]
= ElECrease by 0.25% 32 ar
Pansion ncreass rae
- increase by D23 n 36
- chscreane by 0.25% [30) {351
Maorzlity rate appled 1o specilic age
- sl [orsard one year [47) 150]
- et backward one year a7 50

(20 The Defined Contribution Scherme — D6 Porton
Increase/idecrease) in
defined benefit obligations
2024 023

Smillion 4 million
Actuarial assumptions
DHscouant rate
- Increase by 0259% [1m) 1
= decrase by 0.25% L] 12
Interest to be credied
- Increase by (L25% o 12

The abxove senditivity anahyses are based on a change in an assurmiption while holding all ather ssumptiond corstant in
peactice, change n some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculatng the sersitiviy af the defired benofin
obligatian to signficant actuarsl stimptions, the wme method (present vakie of the defined benedi oaligation
cakulated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reponing period) has been applied as when
cakulating the defined benefit Babiliny mecognized within the consolidated statement of finanoad pasition. The sty
has hsen pedormed on the wme b a5 for 2023

The follawing tabde st out the wo:'qh[n:d aveiage durations of the delined benelit obligations of the Schermes:

2024 023

The Pentian Schieme 10.1 Years 108 Y

The Dellned Comtibiman Schame = DE Podtlan 4.7 Years 21 Vs
135 Aol fepoe 24 Wl
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)

27. Employee retiremant benefits [continued)

(b) Defined contribution retirement schemes

2024 003
4 million 5 millign
Expreries iecognised in prolit o loss 8 I

Farfehed contribautions of 52,646,000 (2003 §2.086000) have basn recebeed during the year and no cortributians by
e ployers on behall ol emplovess who leave the schamas prod to vesting fully n such contribution) were used to affest
e ting conmrburions.

28. Other non-current liabilities

2024 2124
S million 5 millkon
Provisions {sor note (a) below) 1,400 1381
Lease labilities (See nate [b) below) 1 1
1401 1383
[a) Provisions
2024
S million
Provisions for asset decommissioning obligation
At 1 lanwan 1.381
Acditional pravisions mado 86
Prosdsdons utilised 1671

AT 3] Decimber 1,400

Under SolA, pravision which represents the best estimation of expenditure required 1o sastle asset decommissianing
obligation has o be made to the extent that HE Electric incurs an obligation fof the costy of dismantling and remsxing
peoperty, plant and egquicment and resloning the sites an which they ans located aither when the assels ane aoquired o as a
consegquence ol having wred them durng a partioular period for electncity-related aciivities
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{b) Lease liabilities

The fallowing mable shows the remaining contraciual maturtes of the Geoups’ kaase Bbdites at the end of the cunent and
preaUs faporting pediods:

2024 2021
Present walue Prasent vl
of the minimum  Tetal minimum  of the madmum: Total monimum
lease payments  lease payments  coso payments bease payments

5 million S million % mélon & million

Within 1 yoar 1 1 - 2
After | year Bub within 2 years 1 1 1 I
F F 3 3

Legd: potad fumirs Inpenest eaperees - -
Presar vaue of aie Labiitles 2 i

Incame tax In the consolidated statement of financial position

{a) Currenttaxation in the consolidated statement of financial position

2024 2023
& millian % milllion

Heng Keng Profits Tax
Prowition fior Hong Kang Profits T fof the year 74 o0
Proseis ional Profits Tax paid 5171 -
224 ]
Balance of Profits Tax provigion relating (o prior year - (200
224 BRG

ib] Deferred tax liabilities
2024 3
£ million % e
Deleirod thx HabEsied 10,140 112
137 vl |
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Financial Statemeants

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)

29. Income tax in the consolidated statement of financial position [continued])
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

i Tra= carmpanents of delered tax fsbilit| sl anett) meogneed in the contalidated staterre it of finandsl paaition and

the momrements duting the year are a5 foliows

Dapreciation
allowances Defined
inexcessof  Fuel Clause benefit
the related Recovery  retirement
% milllion depreciation Account schemes Others Total
AL anagy 1023 10037 313 M o 10435
Chargedferedned) 10 prodic or loss 52 (A1) 3 3 |263)
Chargedfciedied) 1o othe
comgrehenineg Incoime - & E1E5) LR ]
Charged dirsctly In equity - - . 1 1
At 31 December 2023 and
1 January 2024 10,089 (i} 79 (35 10,124
Charpedcredied)] 1o profit of loss 25 [27) 3 1] -
Charged Meiedie) 1o ol
comgrehende incame - - i3 nrn 16
At 31 December 2024 10,114 [36) 115 (53} 10,140
(il The Grougs had no materal unprovided deferred tax asseds of llabigies as 31 31 Dacermiber 2024 and 2023
138
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30. Capital, reserves and dividends

{a] Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation Betvwesn the opening and clrilng balancsi of cach companent al the Groupy” condoldated squaty | ot
ol in the consoficdated watement of Chamges in equity. Degails of the changes in the Company’s individual components ol
equity between the beginning and the end of the year ane 56t out below:

The Company
Preposed)
Share Share Hadging Ruvenue declared
capltal presmium FERHYR T dividend Total
S il frace 300 e B (note MNdGH  (noke M) frobe 1)
France ot | Rouary 2003 g ATATE -t i 1412 k]
(hanges in sguity v JIE
Profe for the year - - - 106 - ims
(Orhr cnmpeshenihee lncome - - {135 - - nis
liotal comgrehensye income - - 4] 18 - i5m
Secoed miesim dividend inespect of
peaanis year appioved and pad
e nze 1Rl - = = = A2 A
Fst intenen dhvdend pad (s nete (40 - - - [am - (1408
Fropoued second intedm dhvidend
e oz 14 - - - k] 1412 -
Balance at 31 Decernber 2023 and
1 January 1014 ] 741 i 473 1,412 534M
(hanges i egulty for 2004
Prefi for the year - - - 1,109 - 1109
(Cehercommieherber Income - - 53} - - (531
Tetai comprehanswe income - - 1531 1,009 - 1056
Socond inlenmn divdend inespect of
PRrAOA yrar apned and paid
\ee e 14k} - - - - .43 (.43
First indavion dvidlend pad (5o note ik - - - 11.408] = {1,408]
Froposed soond intedm dhdend
e e 14l - - = 14z 1412 =
Balance at 31 Decernber 2024 8 74 177 3018 1412 51087

Al of vhe Comparty's shane premium and nivenue feseree is svalable for geribution, The Compary Board declared the
paymment of a weoand interim diidend of 1609 cents (007 1609 conts) per ardinany share, amaunting ta 51,422 million

{3023 51,422 million), In fiew of 2 final dividend snd tharefiors na final dividend was proposed by the Campany Board

139 Aol fepoe 24 Wl
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Financial Statemeants

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)

30. Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(b) Share capital

The Company
2024
Number of Shares MNominal value
5
Authorised:
Ordinary shares of 50,0005 each
At 1 lanuany and 31 Decembar 20,00:0,000,000 10,000,000
Preference shares of $0.0005 each
AT Jarwany and 31 Decernber 200, 0o, OO0, D0 10,000,000
Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of 50,0005 sach
A1 Jarsany and 31 Decernber 8.836,200,000 4,418,100
Praferanca shares of 50,0005 sach
At 1 Januany and 31 Decermber 8.836,200,000 4,418,100
W
Feurmibr of Shanes Hamina value
&
Maahared
Ordinary shares of S00005 mach
A1 Larnaany and 11 Decernber 2000, 0 D 10 01 o0
Preference shares of 500005 each
A1 Lanwany and 31 Decernber J0000.000,000 10,000,000
tssued and fully pakd
Oyedinary shares of 500005 pach
At 1 larmeary and 31 Decernbar A6 20,000 4418100
Preference shanes of S00005 each
At 1 Jarnary and 31 Decernber 8,836, 200,000 AAIE 100
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(e} Share premium

Share premium epresents the excess of Share Stapled Uint issuing price over the rominal values of ordinary and peeference
shares, after deducting undenwriting commisshons. and listing expanses prmuant 1o global offering that have been chasged
1 equlity. The applcation of share prembum & govemned by Saction 34 of Cayrnan Companies Law and the peovisions of
Coanpany’s amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of Assocation.

{d) Nature and purpose of reserves

i Hedglng reserve

The hesdaing redenee Inchades eash o hedge resene and cost of hedaing reserve. The eanh flow hedge resene
compelses the sfecthve porion of the cumulative net change inthe falr vahe of hadging intruments used in cath fow
hediges (net of any deferned 1ax efea) pending subsequent recognaion of the hedoed cash fow in accordance with
the accourtng palicy adopted for cash fiow hedpes in nobe 30ai{ih Under HEFRS 9, Financal s umends, il the Groups
extlude the fonward elament af fonsard cartracts and tha fassign cumency basis spraad af fnancial instumerits {Ehe
“exc luded elerments’) fram the designation of the hedging insruments, then the excluded elements may be separately
accounled for as cost ol hedging. The fal value changes of the excluded elements are recognlsed in a separate
component of equity as cost of hedging resenve to the extent that it relates o the hedged teme,

11 Arewod fiepmt 24 1l B
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)
30. Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)
[d Nature and purpose of reserves [continued)
(i} Hedging reserve [continued)

The followsng tables provide a reconciliation of the components in hedging resende and an anahsis of other
comprehensie Income by risk category that arises from hedge acoounting

(1) Cashflow hedge reserve

% mifilon rate risk risk Total
Halance at 1 lanany 2063 157 o 1366
Effective portion of changes In falr value of hedging
irstriments recognisad in other com prahensive incame (125 1] (on
Reclassification adjesmarts for amounts transfemed to
profit or loss (see note T below] 265 - |26
Mat deferad tax creditedAcharged) 1o othel
comprehensve ncome 43 (3 40
[351) i5 1336)
Amounts transferred to the initial camying amouwnt of
hadgad {tems, net of tax (see note 2 balow) - 3 El
Balance at 31 Decembaer 2023 and
1 January 2024 [see note 3 below) A0 627 1,033
Effective portion of changes in falr valus of hedging
irstnuments recegnted in other comprehensive ecame 1689 77 1nz
Reclassification adjustments for amounts trnsfemed to
profit or st (see note | Belowd (301} - 1307]
Neat defered tax credited toothar comprebensive iIncome 10 12 2
(1o (&5) 11&7]
Amourts transferred to the inibal camying amoent of
hedged items, net of tax {see note 2 below) - 5 5
Balance at 31 Decembar 2024 (o2 note 3 below) 304 567 B71

Wote 1 Amounis reclasalfied 1o prolit or loas sie secognied in the Finanoe coss” iing mem in the consoldalrd sacemaers ol
il o b

Mote ] Amousns tranidmned B0 the indtiad carning armourt of hediged B ase recugnied in the Froperiy, phinand
wppprnen o nkenfories ine e i e conedickated statemer of financial posiion

Wote 3 The ermne Balane seliles o corlinug ey
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{2} Costof hedging reserve

Foreign
currency Farward
& milion basis spread element Tatal
Bslynee a1 1 Lafuany 2073 147 536G [578]
Hedging fod time-period telasd hedged ems
Effectivs potion af chanaes in falr value of hadging
inuruments recognised in other comprehe e inoome i3 [ 3951
- Rectassification sdjustmants far amouris transfemed 1o
peofit o Ioss fee note 1 below) - {63} (&3]
Hesdgineg flos trarsaction related hadgad tems
= Effective portion of changes in fair vaiue of hadging
Imstruiments recognied in other comipeeiam e inoaime - 5 5
- Amaunts trarsfemed 1o the initfal carndng amount of
hedged Tems (see note 2 below) - 1 I
Net defered tax (charged)oedied o othet
comprehensive incoms {5l =] 75
Balance at 31 December 2023 and
1 January 2024 (see note 3 balow) {14} 1941] [955]
Hedugiteg fos time-peviod relsted hedged imms
- Effiective portion of changes in fair vaiue of hadging
Instruments recognibsed in other comprehersve Income 12 60 [iv]
- Reciassfication adjustrrents for amourss transfermed 1o
peofit o loss fsee note 1 balow) - 163) 163)
Headiging fos trarsaction related hedged items
- Effecitee portion of changes in falr value of hedging
Instruments eecognised In other comipieheng e income - 12 12
- Amounts trarsfored to the initial carmdng amount of
hedgad wems (see note 2 below) - 14) 4}
Net defered tan chamged 1o other comprehersve iIncoma (a) 1 5}
Balance at 31 December 2024 (:oe nole 3 below) 4 1937) (933)

Note | Amaconis reclsiifiod 1o peollt of oa are resqrised in the Finance com” ine item in the corsslcatd mmpren of
pralit o loss

Mobe 1 At paevirermesd 10 Uhe indlal camyieg aenou of hedigid Rems pe recogresed in e Fropeeny, plant and
SApEART o b s B e the comelsiated sateameni of lnancial positon

Woee 3 The emive salance telibes bo coailingirg hedgs

143 Aremod fepae 24 B
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)

30. Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(d

(e}

Mature and purpose of reserves [continued)

(i1} Revenue reserve

The revanue rasesve comprises the acoumulated peofits retained by the Company and ks subsidiaries and accumulsted
actuana gainiiosses on remeasurement of net cefined benofit assottabslity of HE Elecmic

Capital management

Thie Growaps’ peimary obijectives when managing capital ans

- to safequaid the Groups' ability to continue as a going concemn, so that the Gioups can continue to provide retuma lor
holders of Share Staphed Unis sid benlits Foe otber slabehoidien;

- ho pravide retumas to halders of Share Stapled Linis by securing access tn finance at a reasonable cost.
- 10 support the Groups' stabity and futuee growth; and
- to pravide capltal for the purpose of strengthening the Groups' risk management capability.

The Groups acthvely and fegulisty revies and manage the capital structute, taking into considenation the futue caplal
recuirernents of the Groups and caphal efficiency, farscast profitabilty, forecast operating cath flows, forecast cagital
eapendiuie and projected inseiiment oppoamunited

The Groups monior the caphal stucture on the bask of a net debr-te-net 1otal capital atio, For this purpose the Groups
defirse net dekst bt interea beaing beerowings (i shown in the consabdated datement of firancial poditian | less bank
deporitiand cath, Net potal capital indludes net dest and equity which compries ¥l compane nth af eority L shoram in the
consolidated staternent of linancial peattion),

Dujring 20004, the Graups strateqy, which was unchanged from 2073, was to contral the Groups® level of debit in arder o
“ecUn hoceks to firance at A easonable cot. bn ander 1o maintain of adjust thie level of debt, the Groaups msy adjnt the
armormt of dissritutions paid 1o holders of Share Stapled Units in sccosdance with the Trust Deed, issue new Share Stapled
Units, ralse v debt financing or 32/l assets 1o reduce debi

265/336



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000o000000O0ondn(E30309)
OoooooooooooooooOonoao

The et debe-to-net 1ol capital ratio ar 31 Deceméer 2034 and 2073 wa a3 follows:

2024 2023

§ millian § milllian

Hartk loans and cthey interest-beanng bonawings 50,810 SeT
Hank everdrafs - ursecured a5 i
Less: Bank deposits and cash [30) 21
e dehit 50,825 50,185
Total eduity 49,250 4978
e _200z% s
bt tatal capial 100,115 9,163
Mt debttornet tatal capal ratio 51% 1%

31. Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments

The Groups ae sxposed to oede, bguidity, Imenest e and corency ks o the nosmal cowse of its business. n sccondance

with the Groups’ treasuy policy, desvatve financial instnumeants are only used to hedge 85 exposune to foreign exchange and
Irmesfesst rate riks arksing from opemntonal, fnancing and vestment acthvities The Groups do nos hold or siue derbative financial
Imstiurmenits Tor irading of speculative purposes.

(a) Creditrisk

The Geowps’ ciedlt rik s primarily astribasable to trade and other receivables ielating to electricity customens, bank depasits
anell ovethe-counter derkative financlal metruments ertered into for edging purposes. The Grougs bave a credit policy in
phace and the oxposures to these credit reks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

i rexpect of trade and other recefvables relating to electricny customens, MK Electric obtaing coliatenal in the Torm of security
depoiity of bank guaraniees om customen in accordance with the Supply Rules The collateral covered 2440 million of trade
and other ieceheables at 31 Decembet 2022 (2023: 5451 million). The chedd policy & 461 oul i nate 21,

The Growps have defined minimum credit (@ting reguisments and transaction limits for cosnterpartiey when dealing in
linaincal derbralivies or placing deposits Lo minimise oned posure, Thie Groups do net expesdt any counbenpaty 10 il (o
meel s obligations

The: Groups have no significant concentratizns of Credi rivk in respect of trade and other reced/ables relating fo electriciy
cadormrs, s th hve begest comtamers combired did not exceed 30% of the Groups” total revenwe.

Tht mramintr experiung e credit ok i repnesented By thie carming amsunt of each financial assen, incluging dertatioe
financial instruments, in the consalidated materment of financlsl position

Further quantititive dischosunes in respect of the Groups” cxpanare 1o cied T rlsk arbirg frorm tade and other reeehables are
st ot Pt 20,

145 Aremod fepme 24 B
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)

31. Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)

[a) Credit risk (continued)
Offsetting financial assets and Mnancial liabilities

The Groups' dervative ransactions are executed with fnanclal institwions and govemned by ether International Swaps and
Dhesrivatives Association Master Agreements [150A7 or the gereral terms and conditions of these finanoial insticutions, with a
cenditional right of st off under cerain clroumstances that wouikd result in all cutstanding trandactions being tefminated and
net sattled.

A5 these financisl institutions curmently have na legal enforceable rght to setoff the recognbsed amouwnts and the Groups do
nat intend bo-ceftle on a net basks o to reale the assets and settie the kabilides smukanecusdy, all such financial instruments
are recosded ongross bass a1 the end of the reponting pencd

Thiz foliewing hibke presents the recogntsed fnancial Instuments that are sebject 10 enfiosceable master netting
arangements tut are nof offset at the end of the reporting period

H AR
Grog amowts Crss amcurs
o Araneiad of Francal
Imirumeaty narumert
Inthe Felated nite Fegisd
censehdated firandal ol sl Francal
italement  imtrumimbs At néumETh
of firandad hat awpot o fnancal il ot
§milion N peditioa offiet  Hetamomnt oo ot bt amonrt
Framscial asets
Ity cap gy kL] 483 i ] .04 me 48
Forwandloreign exchangs conrct: i 135 & 135 12 n
Tod &8 nEn 461 b | MER L
Finmcll liabdities
Lz cumency et e B (B8 - W o
Iy i mig EL1e ] 1 n - # i} -
Fonwiardlrmign sschangs conmact: nn ] 1] - ] o -

Tl 157 nsn - ] [En -

M Fhaitiic imeent i 146
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Liquidity risk

The Geoups operate o central cash management system In ooder to acheeve o better contmd of sk and minimitse the costs
of funds. The (eoups’ policy 15 to reguligly monitor curent and expectad liquidity requirements and compllance with loan
COMENENTs, 10 ensure that the Groups maintain sufficent reserves of cash and adeguate comminted Bres of funding to meet
sl |ty requilnermisnts in the short and longer tenm, The Geoups had wndrawn comim ited ank faclities of $4,850 milllon
31 Decapnier NEM (2073 96,535 million)

The fallowing tathes show the ramaining contraciual maturigies at the end of the reporting period of the Groups’
non-detivative financial liabiltes and demvatsve financlal instrurmends; which are based on contractual undiscounted cash Rows
{inchuding interest payments comput ed using cortractual rates o, 1 ioating, based on mtes current at the end of the
respeating peviod) and the eadiest date the Graups can ba regquired 1o pay.

porl]
Mare than More than

Within Tyearbot  2yearsbut Carrying
Tysaror bess than Bess than More than ameunt at
§ mmillioe ondemand Iysars Syaars Syaars Total 31 Dacemnber
Mon-daelvative financial Babilgies
Eavk loseti and other bonowings and
nlerst dinsh 1,555 13384 10,247 17,936 64112 51019
Back peerdeatts - ansbowred 45 - - - 45 45
(e andaceed chages 1,960 . - . 2460 2450
5,060 3384 10,247 1,036 5,617 53514
Darivaitive financial instrumants
Bt peniied
niewst 3t saage 2nd relsted
Ml Fruah (333} (268} (LLED 1451 (48] [451)
Gress setiled
{Cocrss qumency sRaps and reaed
et somsh L1
- oW m 16 EH 14 435
-flow [v98) 13 1881 t2] (48]
Farang feesgn axchange contact held =
casn Bow hedging imbruments 87
- enow 3638 - 7823 10,340 nga
= inflow (3,660} = 18,175 10,293 (22728
Crret borward foregm exchange o bt -
- o foe 5 - - - 5
- nflow L1} - - = (8
147 Aol fepoe 24 Wl

268/336



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000o000000O0ondn(E30309)

Ooooooooooooboooononoad

Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)

31. Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)

(b Liguidity risk [continued)

fari]
Corancnual undncousted cash outfiowairfiow)
Warr than Mo than
Wiithin | yeie bt 1 vear bl Camyiney
Iyt i than A st Yo than oy o
& el 6 deiing 2 iR e Sk Tewsl 31 Dot
Mon-derivative nancial liabilities
Hen inand and othed Bomssingand
irienes] Ao T550 51 pr JASTR E5AT 5030
Fank ooty = nseined # - - = ] M
SHOMHID e s i - L. A
T ] 1251 N H5TE BEETE A
Drarivative Binancial instruments
Mat sekthed
Irtevest e s and rebned
ilimesl ACtran [ih % (EEi] 1] 11,308 ]
Groas settled
Cross pumency waps ot rdatid
el affri A
= ERffiow X ot 150 £ 638
lew L] [ 1L (2] 1805
Fornant boneig= cxchanags conttactt held m
rd\hl‘mhd?l.; e (T ]
« utflon 1553 = 131 i LTt
nflew 1" 550 (154 (a0 {19078
b fnrwved frweson ewrbamg e eontmon:
= St 1 - E - 144
= e [1E1] . = . nan

148
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(e} Interestrate risk

The Groups ane expased 10 Intenest rane risk on it InEnest-beaning assets anc babiities. Intarest rate ks the gk that the
fairvale of future cash flaws of a financial Instrimeant will fluciiate because of changes In market Intesest rates The Groups'
naerest rage fisk arises prirnanly from long-tesmn extenna bormowings

ik

Hedges of interest rate risk

Thee Geoups’ pollcy B o maintan 3 balanced combination of Ted and vanable rte bomewings to reduce it Interest
rabe risk experune, The Groups alio use cross currency swaps and inlenest rale swags 10 manage thi eposdne in
accondande with thi Gioups’ treaaay palicy,

The Growigs classfy cioss cutrency swaps and Imeest rate swaps a5 canh flow or falr vaiee hedges and states them af
Fair vabue i accomisnce vath the pohicy set ol innote M), Farsign curmency basis speesd of Qo5 owimency swas an
exciudid from the desigration of the hedging mstrument and ane sepansely accounted for as o cost of hedging which
b recognised in equity in & cont of hedging reusne,
Thie Grougs seek 1o hedge the benchmank interest rate component snby and apply 3 bedge rave of 11, The extitence
ol i soanamic inktlambip BEhiaieh the cait Clareny :w:l','rl.'hm Rl Seapd .'d'ld thi feeced ancl warlabile eate
bornowings i dennrmined by matching 1hesr critkcd conmiact term, inchuding the rlensnoe imeretn ranes, Tenoe,
Irterest repricing dates, maturity dates, ntetest paement andion receipt dates, the notional smounts of the saaps and
the oulstandmg prncipsl ameunts of the bonowings.
The h:dge Ireffectheencds in thesi hedging relationthips can e fom:

tha effect ol the counteipaty 4nd the Groups' own credit sk on the air value of the ssapcand

- differences in repricang dates betaeen the nwvars and the bormwings

5] Aremod fepme 24 B
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)

31. Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)

5]

Interest rate risk (continued)

L]

{Hify

Interest rate profile

The followsng table detalls the interest rate prolile of the Groups” et Interest-baanng assers and Labilites at the end of
the reponting period, after taking into account the effect of cross curency swaps and Interest rate swaps desigrated as
cash Aow o faivalus hedging irstrumens (1ee () aboval

024 2023

S million 4 million
Met fixed rate labilities
Bandk fnans and ather Bormowings {37.206) {37.765)
Met variable rate assotsi(Habilities)
Caslh &1 bank and in hand 3 1
Bank loans and other borrowings 113,604] (12E97
Bank eveselrafts - unsacuned [45] (4}
Customers’ depasits 12,507) (2445

116,126] {13365

Sensitivity analysis

Az 31 December 2024, 1t b estimated that a general incease/Gecrease of 100 bask points In intenest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have decreasedmoreated the Groups' prolie aftet tuaton and revenue nesene by
approcimately $125 millon (023 5116 million). Cehir companents of consalidated equiy would e

Increausdrdos reatsd by appraximately 5188 million (2023 $268 millan) I reaponse ta the genesal increase/dacioase
I el rales,

The senaitivity anafysis above has been determined ddsuming that the chango in infenest e had aocurned at the end

al the rrpnd'ru] peried and had been appled to the FapoiLing to interedt e riak for both destvativie and non-derhathes
financial Instrurmerts in exiitence o that date. The anabrils ks been pedomed on the same basls o for 2003
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(d] Currency risk

The Groups ane expased 10 currency risk primarily through purchases and bomowings that are denominated ina owrency
other than the hunctioral cumency of the Groups. The curencies giving rise 1o this sk ate primardty United Stabes dollars and
Japaness Yen

fif Hedgesof currancy risk

Thee Grougs” policy s i hisdge 100% of their foesign canency bonowings and to hedge their estimated faign
chimhery exposutes in respect of forecas purchases in acoordance with therr reasury palicy. The Groups wee forward
fermgr change contidcts snd cros Curnty fwap 16 manage cuirency thliand claalfy as cath fow o lak value
hedgess and stanes 1herm at i valus in accordance with the palicy 561 out in note 3(g). The Groups detigrane the spat
element of fonward forsign exchange contracts 1o hedge the Groups curency risk. The fonsard elements of foraard
exchance contracts are eschubed from U dussgriation of th hedgng instnorsnt and s separately sccountid foras
acad of hedging, which i recognised m oquity in 3 cowt of hedging reseree, The Groups’ palicy [ for the cratical terms
af the forward sxchange contracts 1o align with the hecged tem.

The Grougs apply & hedos rankool 1 and detemrning (he existence of an economs relstiomhip between the foraand
eachange cantiaets and the carmmied and farecait anisctionUisisign cumency Batmowings biked on thedt cunency
arnounts and the Eming of thess rewpective cash flows.

Thee hesdos irsellactivenis in e hiiging relstonahips cat dalse from:

- the eflect af the countemamy’s and the Groups” own credit riuk on the falr value of the forweed farelgn eschange
conracty; and

ehamees in the nming of the hedged transactian.
The Groups’ Bonosings are elihar Dedgud 10 Hong Kong dollss by wiys of fenwand forsign exchangs contiscts snd

crass currency swap of denaminated in Hong Keng dollss. Gven this, the mandgement doss not xpect thal thens
wiuld be any significnnt curency rik atsockated with the Groups' borowings.

151 Armiol fepot M2
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)

31. Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)
(d} Currency risk (continued)
(i} Exposure to currency rlsk

The followsng table dewils the Groups’ exposure at the end of the reparting period 1o cutrency risk arising fram
recognised assats or labikisies denominated ina currency other than the functioral cusrency of the Geoups.

2024
‘million (expresied in orlgingl cunencies usD il
Trade and other payables and contract liabities 167] {1.2386)
Bank loans and aoher bofrgwings (2.295] -
Giods exposune ansing from recognised assets and Habdities 12362 {1,236]
Metianal amounts of forward forsion exchangs contracts desgnated s
hedging instrumants 1,345 23
Notonal amounts of cross cumency swags detlgnated as hedging instruments 950 -
_Nu: eupasure arksing from recognised assets and labdisies 1671 l'l,‘lli]_
208
‘million fexpressed in original curencies) s Py
Bank deposits and cash - [
Trade ind other payabios and contract labEtics [9t) (407
Bank koans and other bormowings 230 -
Gt exposune arsing from recognised assets and labdities (2368 11406
Netional amounts of forward foreign exchange contracts designated a5
hedging imtruments 1340 L]
Hational amaunts of cross curmency swaps designated as hedging intruments G50 -
Wt expoyure arising o recogrised asiets arcd bt (78] {1275}
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[lii) Sensitivity analysis

The follzwing rable mdicates that a 10 percent strengthiening inthe foBowing cumensy sgainst Hong Kong dollars
arthe end of the repaning pardod wardd have nceased/decreased] the Groups' profit after tazation [and revends
reserve) and other components of consoidaied equity,

024 vk ]
Effect on profit Effect on other Effect on prafit Effect on othet
after taxation and components 0o tton and components
FEVENUS FEseTVE aof equity TEVETILE FRSErE of equity
Increasel Increase/ Increase’ InCieawe
S million (decrease) [dnqlull Iidncre._ase] 1,|;ln-:re_'ae1e:l
Japanese Yen =] = - =

A 10 it waakening in the stowe currency againgt Hong Kong collars 55 the end of the reponting period would
b haad an ol but oppasite effect on the Groups” profit after taation (and revenue resence) and other companents
of consalidated equity

This sersknily analyss astumnes that the changse in foreign exchange ridies had been applied to re-mepasure those
francial instiuiments hild by the Groupd which expoie the Grougs 16 cubiency flik at the-end of the repaiting period,
and that o arker varinies, in pasticoulde [ATEresT rates, remain consEant, in this respect, it s aaumed that the peaoed
rate between the Hong Kong dollar and the Unfed States dola would be materialy unaffected by any changes in
rragwemient in value of the United States dolas against other curnencies. Thi analysis hat been pedfiormaed on thi same
bty as for 2023

153 Aremod fepae 24 B
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Financial Statemeants

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)
31. Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)

[¢] Hedgeaccounting

The faliewing tablss summarse the hedging metruments, hedged iterms and bedged ks of the Goups o the pean ended
1) December 2004 and 2071

{i} Cash flow hedges

HH
Dt it e
Corrping amsuntd vl caaliting
b mrrameen ncidedin s et
lemtn Dt
Sl trarcdd Tk
B Mt e el e gt
- el e Tode oy ks ey
Badny  belgey wecewl  mdee  meomel mdmevmd  Belgey el mopadle
e el T T b pltwks
Sy FErED Mowtpbs  ow ol fale el fela  inle  fela  inle  falle
i ek vy ot R e oessl et ot Sl o e sl s e
[ gt us T w # L ] i ] “
P g b 13
T i b Ty el o ] Ko LA
aitding i [ LT ™ PR [ | " 1 L] il at 7 .
KT H RN EEl
3 o g ey ik of ey vy ooy
] lermge e Hangirgfon ] s i - ] L] ® -
(L] RO EH o
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gy cedbriiian
bl e e fety refme
[t [t
il I [k
Bepied MEXE DVRR [ ] e
py  pond e Tax e e o8
feime  bebm  ramm pime eeoen omiome el e eymen
I AR = ol b [ ] ok
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Financial Statemeants

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)

. Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continuad)
(e} Hedge accounting [continued)

[} Fairvalue hedges

fmliee  Gmilin  Gmiien  Gallen  fmln  fnlles  jmilon jrekae

D —

o
Changes i [ nibos nd
forcabaating g
[y et prkededin o e
o Derimtiv Trade
Wngand frual frurdal s ather
g mrionh Eitremsty  papubles Hrcgt
vkl i Trads et e et
muprted Mofioul motcemnt  anfolher moewel cestud Hedgng  Hedpd  necogrisdie
oeful amoen ustts  ceeoble bble lblte i ems  prefiterkn
L
fEET
ol bl
Forl]
Carrying amount of hedged esa.
(Including acoumulated falr value Acoumulated fair walun hedge Limve e s the cansoliated
hedge adjustments} adpust=enty of hedged tesa statement of finascial pasitionin
Hedged itwm: § million §million  which the bedged ftems ar included
Finareclal abdities 3 - Trade and ether payables

and contract Babilities
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= B et b U eew LI L
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b 115
Cartyng amount of hedged e
[nciuding acrumulaed i value Aocummaiated farvdoe hedge Lis2 e in 1he consofidiied
e adpuiiment aedjusitmenris of Fesdiged BT et of francal pastion in
Hedged ipems § millioes Smiliom  whic the hédged s aiz Included
Feuncu! Litiities (145 Trinde ired ather puayabien
and comract ateines

Nane ‘The folbersing mibile peovides infarrmation on the witighted svérage conte mecs o outstending fervaed foreign exchange

ErninaTs Al et e o (hee resgaiting) etk

2024 23
Witlghiod averdge cOMB @i
LIS : HED TARS4 LT
Y HED 0510 [t ]
L - B5548
Byl 1528640 NEIRS
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)

31. Financial risk management and fair values of financial instruments (continued)

(f}  Fair value measurgment

The faliewing table pretents the fairvalue of the Graups® linanclal nstrurnents measured af the end of the repaning petiod
o i recurning basis, catégoried into the thise-keyel Tair wﬂxllﬂ.ﬂ;lw =1 defined m HEFRS 13; Fgir votlue reasivement, The
fevel irta which a fair value measrement i classtied is determined with reference to the cbservabliin and sgnificance of the
Inpits Lsed in the valuaton technigue an fallows

= Level | valuations Fair value measured using ooly Level 1 inputs le. unadiusied quoted prices inactive matkets for
identical financisl zsets of labilitkes at the meaturement date

- Limem 2 vaduiations: Fale walue measored Lilig Level 2 inguts Le. obiervable inputs which fall to mest Level |, and not
uing 5.i|.'|n|ﬁ;,;:n1 unobrisnalls nputt Unobienalile moutls are inputs for wehich mariest data kb nod availabie

- Ll 3 valuintios: Fal walue maniured using siarficant unabsenable Bnpurs

{i} Recwrring fair value measurements

Level 2
2024 FLLFE]
Pota Smillion & million
Financial assets
Drerivarthee financlal instrumenits:
- niedest rale ywaps ELTEY] 483 602
- Fonward foresgn eschange comacts ELNE] 135 135
618 FE ]
Financial lisbilities
Derivarthe financial instrumenits:
~ CImds currency swaps sl it a2
= WITETEST TATE LaDN iz 1 2%
- Foaward foresgn echange conbacts s 68 -2}
157 11:F.

279/336



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000o000000O0ondn(E30309)
OoooooooooooooooOonoao

[H] Fairvalues of financial assets and liabilities carried at other than fair value

Trade and other recatvables, trade and other payvables and contract labilites, and slo axternal borrawings ane camied
ab cost or amortised cost which are not matedally differant from thedir fadr values as at 31 December 2004 and 2023,

(iii} Valuation techniques and inputs in Level 2 fair value measurements

Thes fair walues ol feeward foreign exchange contracts e detetmined wriing fonward exchange market saees at the end
of the mpaing period. The Bl vitues of crods cunency swaps and Intens rate swaps ate determined by discounting
thie fusure cash Powes of the contracts af the cupent market inbmest rtes.

32. Commitments

a)  The Groups’ capinal commiments ourstanding at 31 December and not provided for in the financial natements were as

Tollows:
2024 2023
£ million & millicn
Contracted for
Capital expandiiure [or propesty, plant and equipment 7437 5832
A but not contracked foe
Capitl expendiure for property, plant and equipment 17,967 31,073

(bi At 31 Decamber 2024, the Groups” shase of copital commetrreants of 2 joint ventune was 519 million (2023 531 million),

At 31 Decamber 2004, the Groups” share of the lease and other cormdnitments of a joint venbure appeocdmated to 5531 millan
12023 5700 millionl

33, Contingent liabilities

Ar 31 Decernber 2024, the Geotpn had no quarantee or Indermnity 1o extermal parties (2023: KB,

159 Aol fepont 004 B
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)

34. Material related party transactions

The Groups had the follwing materal tansactions with refated parties during the yea

[a] Holderof Share Stapled Units

Support service charge recovered from Power Assels group

Cnher operating costs ncluded suppon wervice change recoversd from Power Astets grous amounting 1o 545 milion (2023
S45 millon for provision of the support senvices and office faciaies 1o Powes Asiets group. The suppost sesvice charge was
based on the 1otal costs inoured in the prosviskan of peooueement of the provision of the services and facilites and allocated
0 Parwer Assets group on a fair and equirale basls, taking into accourt the rime spent-by the releant persannel when
peoviding such sendices.

At 31 December 2004, the toral sutstanding balance recahable flom Power Assets group was 35 million {2033 54 millionL
(k) Joint venture

(i} Ther delaily of Shareho'der Loan Facilily provided 10 HELTL by the Growps and the outstanding koan balance a5 a1
11 Decembaer 2024 aee disclased innate 19

(il Armount due 1o HELTL & umecured, mberest-free and hay no fimed term of epayment.

{il)  Irterest Income peceved/recedable from FELTL In respect of the Sharchalder Loan Faclity amounted ta 538 million
[2023: 536 millian)

i) Undera Terminal Uve Agreemant enteted nbo between HE Blectic, CAPCD and HELTL, Operational bendce Chaiges
and Facllity Service Charges wene recenvered by HELTL amointed 1o 5227 millan 2023 5184 milllond and 588 million
[2023; 535 million) iespectivedy,

(vl Under a Secondment Agreement and a bMaster Service Agreement ontefed Into betansen HE Electric snd HKLTL,
HE Elsctric will providis cortan corpamte Mppart sendced to HELTL 0 2094, sendoe foes of 57 millien (2073 58 millon)
were changed 1o HELTL

e} Keymanagement personnel remuneration
Hemasnenstion for key managemant personned of the Groups ane absclosed In nots 12

(d) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to connected transactions

The nelated party tramsactions in respect of note 34{a] above conssiute contimang connected tansactions i defined in
Chapier 144 of the Listing Rubet, However, the tramactions aie et from the disclosure requirements in Chagtes 148 of
The Listng Rules,

281/336



EDINETOOOO
O00o0oOoooooooo00o0O00ooo0oboOo0noOo(E30309)
Oooooooooooooooooad

315. Statement of financial position of the Company
2024 U035
Hote S million £ millian
MNon-current assets
I strneenits i subsidlanes 60,637 62145
Derivatiee financial nstrurments 7T 24|
650,814 B2580
Current assels
Trade and cther recesvabias £ ] 63
Bank depaosits and cash 1 [
&4
Currant liabilities
Trade and other pavables [¥r ]
Net current labilities (27 (283
Total assets less current liabilities 60,787 L FALN
Nan-currant llabilities
Bank loam 18,6590 1-F= 1]
Berivative Ninancial atruments - [ wi]
{8,690) [Aes]
Net assats 52,097 53871
Ca.phirindm I0ial
Share capital B B
Rosenies 52,089 53863
Total equity 52,007 53871

Appreowved and authorised Tae Hsue by the Boaids on 18 March 2025

Cheng Cho Ying, Francis Chan Loi Shun

heocior Dirpetor
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
of the Trust and of the Company

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)

36. Substantial holders of Share Stapled Units of the Trust Group

3z

The Share Stagled Units of the Trust Gootep are isted on the bain Board of the Stock Exchange and am widely held by the public
Power Assets, Stato Grid Coporation of China and Clatar Investment Autharity hold approsimately 33.37%, 21006 and 1990% of
tthae issued Share Stacled Units respectively a5 at 31 Decemnber 2024 and ane consoered substantial holders of Shase Stapled Units of
e Trusd Group.

Critical accounting judgements and estimates

Thiee retheds, estknates snd judgermeits the Diectons wied Inapphing the Groups' scoounting policles huve o sgnificant impact
on the Greups” financlal positon and aperating results. Some of the accounting policies tequing e Groupdy 10 apply estimates and
judgerments an matters that are isherently uncertain Certain critical acoounting judgements in applying the Groups' accounting
policles are described befow

(a)

i)

Depreciation and amortisation

Propey, plant and equipment are depeeciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated vweful lives after taking into
account the estimated residua value. The Groups meview annually the usebul life of an asset and it residual value, 1 ary.
Inbatests in kasehold land are amomised o a stralght-line bass over the shomers of the sstimarted usef! bves of the leased
assets and the unexpirad legse term, fath the penod and methods of amoisation anme edewed annually. The depreclation
and arnodtisation expenses for fumee petods ase adjusted if theee ate significant changes from previous estimates

Impairment

The Groups maview at the end of each reporting perod te idemfy ary Indication that the Greand' property, plar and
ecuipervierit and imberests in leasshold land may be impaired and test anoualle whither goodil hes suffered ary mpairment
in accordance with the accounting palicy (see nate HhiE)],

In cansidering the mpaimment keses thas may be egquised fos the propemy, plang and squipment, inteasits in ksasehald land
wnd goodwill of the Groups, ther iscoverable armaunts need 1o be detemmined. The recoversble amournt b the grester of

the fair vaiue boss costs of diiposal and the value In use. 1t i difficu to preckely eatimate the farr value less coss of disposal
because quoted market prices for these ansets may not be readily svallable. in determining the vahee in ute, sxpected cath
Ficws geneiated by the sieti o COU to which the goadwill hus been allocated she dhcounted 16 their preent vilus, which
recpuings signifcan judgement, The Gioups use all readiy avadable micarnation in detenmining 4n amount thal is a seasonable
sppeoximation of the récovenible amount,

Ay increase of decieass i impainment loises, recognived as et oul above, would affect the net peolit in future yean.

Sae pale 17 Tor key assumptions wsed in goodwill Impaimment et o the year ended 31 Decermber 2024,

r— 162
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38. Possible impact of amendments, new standards and interpratations issued but not yet
effective for the year ended 31 Decembear 2024

Lt the e of 1o of thess financial statemends, the BKICPA has (ssued a oemiber of amendments to HEFRSs and now standaeds
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 Decernber 2024 and which have not been adopted in these financlal statements
These developmaents include the fofowing which may be relevant to the Groups.

Effective for

accounting periods

o S B : B beginning on or after

»  Ammendmends io HEAS 21, The effect of changes in foreign exchange rates — Lack of mchangeatdty 1 lansaey 2025
Armendments jo HKFRS 9, Financial mutrwmants and HEFRS #, Rnoncial initruments alsclodunes -

Ameridments fo the cigstification and mesrinrement of financial intruments 1 lanigary 2026

= Annual improve ments 1o HKFRS A courtng Standards - Violome 11 | bangary 2026

= HKFRS 18, Presentalion and discloswre tn inangiél stalemenls | Lafwiry 2027

HEFAS 19, Subsdimies withow! pubic gooountobilty: dieciosures 1 lanumey 2007

Thee Groups s in the process ufmaHl‘"; an adkessmant of what the impact of thete amendments i expecied to be in the period
of infial spplication. 5o far it ks concluded that the adoption of the abiewe [s unlikely 1o have A sgnificant impact on

the Groups’ results of operations and fnancial poitian,

163

Aremod fepme 24 B
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2024 12 31
118,499 2,277,551
69,209 1,330,197
49,290 947,354
8,836,200,000
/ 5.58 107
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
12,057 11,406 10,793 11,344 10,389
5,488 4,976 4,509 4,845 4,140
(1.408) (1,360) (961) (800) (971)
4,080 3,616 3,548 4,045 3,169
741) (646) (629) (735) (568)
3,339 2,970 2,919 3,310 2,601
(228) 186 35 @G377) 131
HK
3,111 3,156 2,954 2,933 2,732
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
79,950 79,824 78,960 76,740 74,434
33,623 33,623 33,623 33,623 33,623
2,556 2,600 3,125 2,118 1,781
(1,628) (2,625) (233) (3,470) (6,612)
114,501 113,422 115,475 109,011 103,226
(64,343) (63,774) (65,230) (59,553) (54,757)
(868) (670) (912) (1,065) (726)
49,290 48,978 49,333 48,393 47,743
8 8 8 8 8
49,282 48,970 49,325 48,385 47,735
49,290 48,978 49,333 48,393 47,743
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HEC
10
HEC 2019 2033 12 31 15
HEC
2024 2023
HEC
HEC HEC
HEC
HEC
HIBOR HEC
12 31 10

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
12,018 11,321 10,724 11,312 10,363 10,694 11,541 11,621 11,373 11,165
4,084 | s,a01|  6,922| 3,122 1,823| 2,050 2,696| 1,904 | 1,206| 1,861
86 131 111 73 162 7 115 93 79 74
_____________________________________ 16,288 | 16,853 | 17,757 | 14,507 | 12,348 12,822 14,352 13,618| 12,658 | 13,100
....................................... G,653)f | (6,89 (8,420)  (4.778)|  (3,453)f (3,842  (4.530)  (.78%)  (3.109)f  (3.697)
....................................... @8y (@709 (4,702 (1,735 (1,697 (1.723)f  (1.656)f (1,592)f (1.460)f  (1.277)
....................................... @080 (1.029)  (72f | 62Df 778 (764) @79 (719) (811) (838)
@768 (2,497 (2.543) (2.530) (2.419)| (2.342) (.35 (2.210) (2.127) (2.054)
........................................ 4,919 43T AS0f 4.843) 4,006 4.151) 5,082} 5,312| 5,155] 5,234
@) (1,113) (459) (670) (695) (688) (557) 698)| (1,209)| (1,140)
______________________________________ 4,209 | 3,624 3,01| 4,273 8,311 3,463 4,475| 4614 3,046 4,004
........................................ 1,348 1,328) 1,017 926 (. 1,018) 1,043 983 873 821 729

10 10 1 1
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HEC
10
12 31

(224) (889) (149), (541) (577) (137), (214) (351) (360),
(8,501)| (11,318)( (10,838)| (10,622)] (9,930)| (14,207) (8,039)] (9,611)| (11,037)] (9,062)
(6,181)] (8,888)] (5,605)| (8,286)] (8,222)| (12,035)| (5,993)] (5,877)| (8,524) (870),

60,657 57,255 59,274 53,187 49,996 43,248 46,892 46,049 42,935 49,506

@.400)| (@,382) (1.430) (1.319)| (1.122) (955) 747) (503)
(53,097)| (52,437)| (53.752)| (47,925) (45.463)| (38,364)| (42,769) (41.667)| (38,831)| (46,100)

(816), (630) (872)] (1,050) (698) (848) (620), (316) (24) (204),

€7 @D 13) (6] ® 14 ©) (€Y ) @

(0) ©) @) @4 (20 (16) (22) 18 14 (10)

2009-2018 2013 2014

2019
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HEC
10

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

HEC 2020 50 L10
GTS7 L11 2022
GTS7 2020 2021 3,272
800 2005 550
2010 1.4 2023
2.4
LNG
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Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited
HK
Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited HK

HK
HK

183 17 1712-1716
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

KY1-1111 2681
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.0. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

183 17 1712-1716
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen”s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

CCASS
CCASS CCASS
CCASS
CCASS

HK

HK

HK
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HK

CCASS
HK

30

HK

HK
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38 59 328

23 103
KPMG 193

2025 31
1.00 19.22
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HK
2024 12 31

2024 2023

2025 18
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HK
2024 12 31

2023 -
2023

2023 12 31 2024 -
2024

2024 12 31 -
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63,000 2023 62,000
727,000 2023 763,000 HK

383

2024 2023

12 31

135
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S I .
Financial Statements

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
of HK Electric Investments Manager Limited

For the year ended 317 Dacermber 2024
(Expressed in Hong Kong dolar)

2024 2073
Male 5 5
Hevenue
AdrrinEEarhg Erpries
Profit before taxation 4
In2ame mi 5 -

Profit and total comprehensdve income for the year

Thee notes on pages 170 10 174 forrm pai of thess financial statements
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Statement of Financial Position
of HK Electric Investments Manager Limited

A1 31 December 2024
[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2024 2023

Mol $ $
Current assels
Amscaan due fram immediate holding campany T 1 |
Mot azsets 1 |
Capital and reserves
shaee cagetal : 1 |
Regare -
Total squity 1 |

Approved and autharised fod e by The Boand of Direcions aon 16 Masch 2025

Cheng Cho Ying, Francis Chan Lei Shun

M ror oo

The nctes oo pages 170 o 174 foim pan of these financlal statemsants,
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Financial Statemeants

Statement of Changes in Equity
of HK Electric Investments Manager Limited

Forthe year ended 37 Dacermber 2024
(Expressed in Hong Kong dolar)

Share capital Reserves Total
3 % §
Balance at 1 nuary 2023 ] |
Charges i ity for 2003
Pialit and todal compretieriie (ot [or thes wdi
Balance at 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 1 - 1
Changes i eguity for 2004;
Fralit and 1073l comarebieniie o [ar e vear - - -
Balance at 31 December 2024 1 - 1

Thee notes on pages 170 10 174 forrm pai of thess financial statements
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Cash Flow Statement
of HK Electric Investments Manager Limited

For the year ended 31 December 2024
[Expessad in Hong Kong diollars)

2024 2023
$ §
Operating activities
Mo ensh generatng ioem aRenating acthitie -
Inwesting activities
Mot cach wsad in investing actvities -
Financing activitles

e cath wsed in findnd ing acthities -
HMet change in cash and cash equivalents -

ath and cash equivslsnts &0 1 January - =

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December - -

The nctes oo pages 170 o 174 foim pan of these financlal statemsants,
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
of HK Electric Investments Manager Limited

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unbess otherwise indscated)

1.

Genaral information

He Electric nvestmants Manager Limited {the "Company™) was incorporated in Heng Kong under the Horg Kong Companies
Orcfinance on 25 Septembor 200 3-and 5 an indisect whally-ownied subsadiany of Power Assefs, which it inCotporated in Hong Kong
with its shares listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limsted and traded in the form of American Depositary Receipts on the
OTE Markets Group Inc in the United 5tates. The address of the registered olfice and the principal place of businisa of the Comgpany
is Hongkong Bectric Centre, 34 Kennedy Road, Hong Kong

The principal activity of the Compary B administeding HE Electric bnsestrments (the “Tiuss 'l in ks capacity as trustes-rmansget of the
Trust. The Teuss was constituted as a trust on 1 January 2014 by a Hong Kong low govemed Trust Deed erfered into between the
Company, as the tustee-manager of the Trst, and HE Electric Investments Uimited

Thie costs and expenies of acminlitering the Teust may be deducted trom all property and rights of ary kind whatsoever which are
bk v sl o thee tegistened holduers of units of the Trust buet, commermurabe with its specilic and limited robe, the Comgany wall
rat recedve any fee for admiristoring the Trust,

Material accounting policies
fal Statement of compliance

These financial sTatements have besn preparad In accordance with af applicable Hong Kang Financlal Reponing Standasds
{HHPRSs"), which s 2 coflectve tanm that inclodes 2B applicable individua! Hong Keng Fimancial Beponing Standasds, Hong
Eong Accounting Slandards FHEAS:S and Inberpeetations issued by the Hong Kong institute of Certified Public Accountants
{"HMICMAT), accounting principles gererally accepted In Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Oerdimance These financial statements abo comply with the applicable disclosuee provisions of the Rules Goweming the
Listing of Securities on The S1ock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, Mabenizl sccounting policles sdopted by the Company are
disciosed below,

The HEKCPA has bisued a namibssr of amendments o HEFRSs that are Fint effective or avalable for ealy adopbon for the
current aocaunting peniod of the Company, Hote 3 provides information on any changes in accounding pofices resulting

from initial application of these developments 1o tha extent that they are relevant to the Company for the cument and prior
accolinting peniods refected in thess fmanclal staterments

e Mt 170
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{b) Basisof preparation and presentation of the financial statements

The measurement bass used In the preparation of the financial statements is the histoeical cost basis

The preparation of financlal statements in conformity with BXFRSs requives management to make [udgaments, estimares
and assumptions that affec the application of policles and reported amounts of assets, labidities, income and expensas The
estimates and associated assumptiens are hased on Rstodical evperence and various other Ectoes that are-believed to be
reasorable under the clrcumstances, the sesults of which form the basts of making the judgements about carmying values of
assats ard Kakwhties that are not readly apparent from othes sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The pstimiates and underying assumpbons ane evimwved on an ongaing basis. Revisions to aocounting estimates are
recognised in the patiod in whilkh the estimate is resised if the revision affects only that pesiod or in the pesiod of the revision
and Ruture: perkods If the reviskan affects both curren and husune perieds

The Trust Deed requires the Company (on behalf of the Tust) 1o distribut e 100% of the dividends, distibutions and other
amounts moehed In respect of the ordmany thares from HE Electric imaestments Limited, after deduction of all amounts
pammitied 1o be deducted or pald undes the Trust Deed.

n accordance wih the Tt Deed, a detibutions statemens shall be included In the financial statements af the Comparny.
As the detalls of the distribution has already besn presented in rofe 14 ta the consalidated fimancial statermerts of the Trust

and of HE Blectic Investments Limded on page 116, no datibutions statement i therefore presented in thew Bnancial
staboments.

Cash flow statement

Thet Compirny did ot have sy cosh Bows during the cummest and priar yeaes nio did It heve amy cash of cavh equivalents at
any paint threwghour the curmsnt and pricd yean

171 Arewod fiepmt 24 1l B
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
of HK Electric Investments Manager Limited

[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)

2. Material accounting policies [continuad)
[di Related parties
il A peineny o & closs member ol that peran's family i related 1o the Campary i that persanc
(1 has conteol of jaint contol aver the Company;
(@) has sgnificant irflusnce over the Comparny: of
(3 i3 member of the key mansgament perennel of the Company or the Company’s panent,
(il Anentity ls related 10 the Company & any of the toliowdng conditions spply:

() The entity and the Company ate memban of the wme group (which mesns that each paeent, wlsidiery and
fodlerw subysicilang 14 selatad 1o the arherd).

2} Oneentity b a ot venture of an dssocisie of the other entity o a joink venture or an ssockaie of a memnber of 2
group of which the othet entity is & member.

(3 Both entites are loint ventures of the same third pamy.
(&)  Omneentirg s a joint venrure of 8 tho entiy and the ather sntiey s an ameciate of the thisd entmy.

[5)  The engity s a post-employment benelit plan foe the benefit of emgployess of eithes the Company or an entity
telated o bhe Conmgany

(Bl The engiry is controlied of jaimiy contolled by a person igertfied inrote 2d[)

(7} A peron identified in note 2dMiT) has sgficant inlluence over the entity of is 2 member of the ey
management personnel of the entity (or of 3 parent of the entity],

[ The entity, or any memdser of a group of which it s a pan, provides key management personnie sevices 1o the
Comparmy o to the Company's parent.

Chgge members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expecied 1o influence, of be influenced Ly,
that parsan in thile dealirgs with the entity.
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Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has Hsued @ mumber of amendments to HEFRSs that ane first effective foe the cument aocounting period of the
Company, The adoption of these amendments fo MRS has no material impact on the Comgany’s financial ssatements.

The Comypary has ot applied ary rew standasd, amendrment o intepeetation that b not elfective for the curent accounting
period

Prafit before taxation

Audier's remuneranion of $63,000 (2023 262,000 and all athar axpenses of the Camparny which wese Bcured for the adminisesing
o the Truet of 5727000 (2033 $763,000) for the year have been bome by HE Electic Imwestments Limited, which has wabed it ght
ol recovery thereol,

Exceps for the above, the Cosmpany did not incur any adminsmitive expenses dullng the cument and peior yeam.

Income tax

W provision for Hang Fong Profns Tax has been made in the financial statements for the current and price yeass & the Company
did not have any assessable profits

Directors’ emoluments
N directon emohaments it disclsed purisant to section 383(1) of the Hang Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the

Companiis (Dl losare of indormation abour Beneditg of Dinsctacs) Regulation, a4 no fees of ather emokaments wene pald 1o the
Diirectons during e curent and pior years.

Amount due frem immediate holding company

Ansgunt due from immediate hoiding compary b unsecuned, intesest-free and tepayalile on demand,

Share capital

2024 201
Humber Hurribar
- ) S of shares 5 of shares 5
Ovrdinary shares, issued and fully paid:
AL Lsnwary ared 31 December 1 1 ! |

In sccordance with wection 135 of the Harg Korsg Companies Ordinance, the ordinasy shaees of the Comparny do nat have a par
value,

173 Aremod fepme 24 B
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements

of HK Electric Investments Manager Limited
[Expressiad in Hong Kong dollars unlsss otherwise indicated)

9. Capital management
Thi primany objectives of the Company when managing capttal ae to safeguard the Comipany’s abiiity 1o continue as a going
conom, 50 that it can continue to geovide retums for the scle membor and be nefits for other stakeholdens As the Company s part
of a langer group, the Compasy's sounces of additional capital and policies for distibution of excess captal may also be afected by
Lhe group's capital management objectives.
The Company defines “capital” as including aff comiponents of equity, The Company actively and regulasfy reviews and manages its
capital structuee 10 support [t hutune capital requinements and aperations. The Company has a specific and limited role 1o administes
the Trust. All is capital requirerments are fully suppories by the ulttmate holong company,

The Company was not subiect 1o extemally imposed capial requitements duting the curens and prior yean

10. Immediate and ultimate controlling parties
Ar 31 December 2004, the [Mrecton conddder the immediate and uitimare halding companies of the Company 1o be Sem Grade

Limited and Power Assets which are incosporated in the Biitish Virgin hilands and Fong Kong, respectively, Powet Assets produces
finarcial stalements svailsbils for public use,

11. Financial risk management

The Company was not exposed toamy significant credit, lgquidity, mierest mie 2nd cunency risks m the nomal course of its business
dusing thie curent and peior yean.

12. Material refated party transactions

Except for the mansactions and balances disclosed elsewherne in the financlal statements, the Cormpary did not enter into material
related pamy trarsactions

13. Possible impact of amendments, new standards and interpretations issued but not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2024

U te the clate of ssue of thease fnancial watements, the HECFA has lsiued & numier of smendrments 1o HKFASs and new sandards
wetilch are not yet eflfective for the year endad 31 Decomber 2024 and which have not been adopted & these lnancial statements

The Company Is in The process of making an assessment of what the Impact of these amendments s capecind 10 be in the perica of
inial application. So far, it has conchuded that the adoption of them s unifkely to have a significant brpact on the Company's resuls
ol operation and inancial position.

BEE VK Eechic memenn 174
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Holders of Share Stapled Units of HK Electric Investments and HK Electric Investments
Limited

(HK Electric Investments is a trust constituted under the laws of Hong Kong; HK Electric Investments Limited is incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of HK Electric Investments (the “Trust”), HK Electric Investments Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Trust Group”) and of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 86 to 163 (together referred to as the “consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company”).

As explained in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company, the consolidated financial
statements of the Trust and of the Company together comprise the consolidated statement of financial position of the Trust
Group and of the Group as at 31 December 2024, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement of the Trust
Group and of the Group for the year then ended and notes, comprising material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Trust Group and of the Group as at 31 December 2024 and of the Trust Group’s and the
Group’s consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Trust Group and of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company and the accounting

policies 3(f), (g) and (h)ii).

The key audit matter

A wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, The
Hongkong Electric Company, Limited (“HK Electric”), is
engaged in the generation, transmission and distribution
of electricity in Hong Kong (the “Hong Kong electricity
business”), which requires substantial capital investment
in property, plant and equipment.

The Scheme of Control Agreement entered into by HK
Electric and the Government of the HKSAR provides for
HK Electric to earn a permitted return calculated based
on 8% of average net fixed assets. The Development
Plan under the Scheme of Control Agreement governs
HK Electric’s capital expenditure on the Hong Kong
electricity business over the Scheme of Control
Agreement period.

HK Electric’s property, plant and equipment is
specialised in nature and certain items are self-
constructed. The cost of self-constructed property, plant
and equipment comprises, inter alia, the costs of
materials and direct labour, overheads capitalised and
borrowing costs. The Directors have implemented
internal controls over the capitalisation of costs in
property, plant and equipment.

We identified assessing the existence and accuracy of
property, plant and equipment as a key audit matter
because property, plant and equipment is the most
significant asset of the

Trust Group and the Group and is critical to the
operations of Hong Kong electricity business and
because, due to the terms and conditions of the Scheme
of Control Agreement, property, plant and equipment is a
key focus of management and the users of the
consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the
Company.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the existence and
accuracy of property, plant and equipment included the
following:

obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of key internal controls over the existence and
accuracy of property, plant and equipment;

assessing the Trust Group’s and the Group’s
capitalisation policy for expenditure relating to
property, plant and equipment with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;

selecting sample items of property, plant and
equipment acquired and capitalised during the year
ended 31 December 2024 and inspecting relevant
underlying documentation to assess whether these
items met the criteria for capitalisation with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards and to evaluate the date on which costs
were capitalised;

assessing whether the additions to property, plant
and equipment for the year ended 31 December 2024
were consistent with the Development Plan agreed
between HK Electric and the Government of the
HKSAR which governs the level of capital
expenditure over a period of time;

forming an expectation of the value of costs
capitalised for the current year based on the prior
year's capitalisation ratio and the level of capital work
undertaken during the current year, comparing our
expectation with the actual costs capitalised for the
current year and discussing with management the
nature of and reasons for any significant variances;
and

physically inspecting a sample of additions to
property, plant and equipment during the current
year.
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Assessment of potential impairment of goodwill relating to the Hong Kong electricity business

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company and the accounting

policies 3(e) and (h)(ii).

The key audit matter

The Company acquired the Hong Kong electricity
business operated by HK Electric from Power Assets
Holdings Limited in 2014. The goodwill arising on this
acquisition amounted to HK$33.6 billion.

Management assessed goodwill for potential impairment
as at 30 November 2024 by comparing the carrying
amount of

the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated with the recoverable amount determined by
assessing the value-in-use (“VIU") by preparing a
discounted cash flow forecast. Preparing a discounted
cash flow forecast involves the exercise of significant
management judgement, in particular in forecasting
revenue growth and operating profit and in determining
an appropriate discount rate.

We identified the assessment of potential impairment of
goodwill relating to the Hong Kong electricity business as
a key audit matter because the carrying value of the
goodwill is material to the consolidated financial
statements of the Trust and of the Company and also
because management’s assessment of the value of the
future cash flows expected to be derived from the Hong
Kong electricity business involves certain critical
judgements in respect of the assumptions made which
are inherently uncertain and could be subject to
management bias.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess potential impairment of
goodwill relating to the Hong Kong electricity business
included the following:

evaluating management’s cash flow forecast by
comparing the assumptions adopted by management
with our understanding of the Hong Kong electricity
business and by comparing key assumptions and
estimates with relevant underlying documentation,
which included comparing future revenue growth and
operating profit with the Development Plan agreed
between HK Electric with the Government of the
HKSAR and comparing components of the discount
rate with market data;

evaluating management’s rationale for adopting cash
flow projections over a period greater than five years
with reference to the guidance in the prevailing
accounting standards;

involving our internal valuation specialists to assist us
in assessing the methodology applied by
management in its discounted cash flow forecasts
with reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards and whether the discount rates
adopted in the discounted cash flow forecasts were
comparable with those of companies in the same
industry;

performing sensitivity analyses on the discount rate
and terminal growth rate applied and the assumptions
for revenue adopted by management in the cash flow
forecast to assess the impact of changes in these key
assumption on the conclusion reached in
management’s impairment assessment and
considering whether there were any indicators of
management bias in the assumption adopted; and

comparing the actual results for the current year with
management's forecasts for the previous year in
order to assess the historical accuracy of the
management’s forecasting process.
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Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor's report thereon

The Directors of HK Electric Investments Manager Limited (the “Trustee-Manager”, in its capacity as the trustee-manager of the
Trust) and the Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the
information included in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company and
our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the consolidated financial statements

The Directors of the Trustee-Manager and the Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements of the Trust and of the Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company, the Directors are responsible for assessing
the Trust Group’s and the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Trust Group and the
Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are assisted by the Audit Committees of the Trustee-Manager and of the Company in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Trust Group’s and the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the
Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the
Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Trust Group’s and the
Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Trust Group’s and the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements of
the Trust and of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Trust Group and the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the
Company, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business units within the Trust Group and the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements of the Trust and of the Company. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the
audit work performed for the purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committees of the Trustee-Manager and of the Company regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committees of the Trustee-Manager and of the Company with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committees of the Trustee-Manager and of the Company, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Trust and of the Company

of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Lee Wai Shun, Wilson.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

18 March 2025
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Sole Member of HK Electric Investments Manager Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of HK Electric Investments Manager Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 166 to
174, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes,
comprising material accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at

31 December 2024 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor's report thereon

The Directors of the Company (in its capacity as the trustee-manager of HK Electric Investments) and of HK Electric
Investments Limited are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

335/336



EDINETOOOO
O00o0oOoooooooo00o0O00ooo0oboOo0noOo(E30309)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financialstatements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidencethat is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detectinga material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit proceduresthat are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purposeof expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’sinternal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors'use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company'’s ability to continueas a going concern. If we concludethat a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor'sreport to the related disclosures in the financialstatements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion.Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtainedup to the date of our auditor's
report. However,future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and contentof the financial statements, includingthe disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achievesfair presentation.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timingof the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal controlthat we identify during our audit.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

18 March 2025
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